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ACRONYMS

PUBLIC ENTITY’S GENERAL 
INFORMATION

APTA  Association for Promotion of Tourism 
B-BBEE  Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment
BRICS  Brazil, Russia, India, China and South Africa
COGTA  Department of Co-operative Governance  
  and Traditional A"airs 
DEDTEA  Department of Economic Development,  
  Tourism and Environmental A"airs
DM  District Municipality
DKZN  Durban KwaZulu-Natal Convention Bureau
DMO  Destination Marketing Bureau
EIA  Environmental Impact Assessment
ETEYA  Emerging Entrepreneur of the Year Award
FEDHASA  Federated Hospitality Association of  
  South Africa
GDP  Gross Domestic Product
GGP  Gross Geographic Product
GRAP  Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
GSA  General Sales Agency
ICCA  International Congress and  
  Convention Association
ICT  Information Communication Technology
JMA  Joint Marketing Agreement
KSIA  King Shaka International Airport
KZN  KwaZulu-Natal

LSM  Living Standards Measure
NDT  National Department of Tourism
NEF  National Empowerment Fund
NTSS  National Tourism Sector Strategy
SA  South Africa
SAA  South African Airways
SACCI  Southern African Association for  
  the Conference Industry
SADC  Southern African Development Community
SAPOA  South African Property Owners Association
SAT  South African Tourism
SMME  Small, Medium and Micro Enterprises
TGCSA  Tourism Grading Council for South Africa
TEA  Tourism Economic Account
TEP  Tourism Enterprise Partnerships
TIKZN  Trade & Investment KwaZulu-Natal
TKZN  Tourism KwaZulu-Natal
TSA  Tourism Satellite Account
TTRA  Travel and Tourism Research Association
UNWTO  United Nations World Tourism    
  Organisation 
WTTC  World Travel and Tourism Council
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Part AMEC’S FOREWORD 
TOURISM IN KWAZULU#NATAL IS 
POISED TO EMERGE FROM THE 
COVID#19 CRISIS WITH RENEWED 
STRENGTH AND VIGOUR, 
ALLOWING IT TO RESUME ITS 
IMMENSE CONTRIBUTION TO THE 
PROVINCIAL ECONOMY.
Following strong growth in 2019 - when the Zulu Kingdom 
welcomed one million more visitors than the previous year 
- the period under review was marked by stagnation. Global 
travel came to a halt and bookings steadily dwindled amidst 
COVID-19 restrictions.

The coronavirus pandemic cut deeply into our province’s 
tourism industry, claiming lives and destroying livelihoods. I 
o"er my deep condolences to the many people throughout 
our province who lost members of their families, friends and 
colleagues during the year. I pay tribute to the fortitude of 
those who prevailed against the despair. 

While we regret the closure of some businesses, and the loss 
of revenue for others, the tourism sector remains committed 
to safeguarding the well-being of all our visitors, every 
person who works in tourism, and in the many industries 
that depend on tourism. We will continue to be guided by 
provincial and national health departments, as we have in 
developing e"ective protocols for the tourism sector, and 
will always put the safety of people first. 

The future of tourism in our region now depends on how 
we stand together to end the pandemic. The Department 
of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental 
A"airs has worked closely with all our stakeholders, and 
with the relevant national and provincial departments and 
municipalities, to create urgent and e"ective responses to 
the crisis.

This gives us hope for the future.

It renews our faith in tourism to create and support jobs, 
contribute to the economy, and bring diverse people 
together to create memorable experiences.

We are determined to restore the trajectory of growth that 
this region had enjoyed in the years before the coronavirus 
struck. 

When international travel restrictions end, we will be ready 
to open our doors to the world, to invite tourists to feel 
the warmth of Africa’s heart, and to experience the culture 
which feeds our continent’s soul, right here in the Zulu 
Kingdom. 

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal has been at the forefront of 
developing and implementing many strategic measures to 
counter the pandemic’s devastating impact: 

• A Tourism Recovery Plan was formulated and 
TKZN actively engaged tourism trade partners 
and municipalities on the interventions required to 
counter the impact of the pandemic.

• Several product development plans were undertaken. 
These included securing funding for the development 
of picnic sites at KwaXolo Caves, which we had 
visited with the media during Tourism Month, and the 
development of the iSimangaliso Tourism Master Plan 
for the world-renowned iSimangaliso Wetlands Park, 
a World Heritage Site.

• TKZN and the Tourism Business Council of South 
Africa (TBCSA) collaborated to drive compliance 
with the Tourism Industry Protocols to keep people 
safe during pandemic. 

• TKZN worked with the Seeza Tourism SME network 
to assist small tourism enterprises to manage the 
COVID-19 environment and restart their businesses 
using digital marketing skills.

• The Convention Bureau undertook negotiations 
which led to a R50-billion investment by The 
African Export-Import Bank, Afreximbank. The 
announcement of the investment followed the 
Province’s successful hosting of Afreximbank’s Trade 
Finance Seminar in 2019, proving the immense 
legacy value of hosting conferences in our region.

MR RAVI PILLAY
MEC for Economic Development, 
Tourism & Environmental A"airs
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Part A• Tourism KwaZulu-Natal, in partnership with the KZN 
Department of Sports and Recreation, unveiled 
the Dundee July Legacy Project at the Dundee 
Race Track. Public and private sector stakeholders 
collaborated to develop the economic development 
potential presented by traditional horse racing, while 
spreading the benefits of tourism to this rural district.

• KZN businesses were assisted to access the national 
tourism relief fund and towards the end of the period 
under review, a provincial tourism relief fund was 
initiated to ensure the survival of distressed small 
tourism business through the pandemic.

These are some of the many initiatives implemented in 
response to the tourism downturn brought about by the 
COVID-19 pandemic. 

The Department of Economic Development, Tourism 
and Environmental A"airs has used every opportunity to 
confront the crisis directly, while improving the province’s 
tourism o"erings and enhancing digital marketing strategies 
during the lull. This means that tourism in KwaZulu-Natal 
will bounce back to the peaks we experienced in recent 
years, allowing us to reclaim our position as the most visited 
province in the country by domestic tourists, while we intend 
to grow our international market share.

I thank the Chairperson Mr Sithembiso Madlala and all 
members of the TKZN Board for their diligent oversight 

in guiding the work of TKZN, and Acting CEO Phindile 
Makwakwa and all the sta" at Tourism KwaZulu-Natal 
for their dedication and relentless e"orts to improve the 
prospects for our sector amid very di!cult circumstances.

I also thank our partners and stakeholders across the broad 
tourism sector, in business, government, media and in 
communities that would normally have received many more 
tourists over the year, for standing firmly together against 
the challenges we faced, for building our collective resilience 
as we respond to them, and for preparing the sector to face 
the challenges ahead. 

The human spirit triumphs in adversity - so will tourism in 
the Zulu Kingdom.

.
.............................................................................
Mr Ravi Pillay
MEC for Economic Development, Tourism &  
Environmental A"airs
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Part ACHAIRPERSON’S  
STATEMENT 
THE 2020/21 PERIOD BROUGHT 
ABOUT UNPRECEDENTED 
CHALLENGES IN THE TOURISM 
SECTOR CAUSED BY THE COVID#19 
PANDEMIC. SOON AFTER SOUTH 
AFRICA’S FIRST LOCKDOWN, 
IT BECAME CLEAR THAT THE 
GLOBAL PANDEMIC WOULD 
HAVE A SERIOUS IMPACT ON OUR 
PROVINCIAL TOURISM INDUSTRY.
Tourism KwaZulu-Natal had to adapt quickly to the changing 
landscape as COVID-19 tightened its grip during the period 
under review.

The Board acknowledges the agility of Tourism KwaZulu-
Natal to adapt and counter the impact of the pandemic and 
for this reason I am highly indebted to the management 
team and sta" of TKZN for their willingness to go the extra 
mile under extremely strenuous conditions. These included 
budget cuts which became necessary as the country came to 
terms with a constrained economy.

Every performance programme within the entity 
responded to the challenges we faced with innovation and 
a determination to prevail against the odds. New ways of 
achieving the organisation’s mandate were devised, and 
many of these will continue to create e!ciencies as the 
country moves into a new normal.

It is especially encouraging that TKZN’s destination 
marketing and public relations e"orts led to unprecedented 
exposure in mainstream and digital media – estimated to be 
worth over R429 million over the year under review. 

The entity and Department of Economic Development, 
Tourism & Environmental A"airs guided the creation of the 
provincial Tourism Recovery Plan and discussed sector-wide 
interventions with shareholders, the provincial government 
and trade partners.

When the pandemic prohibited the physical distribution 
of information, TKZN resorted to using digital platforms. 
Workshops to help small tourism enterprises cope with 
the pandemic were conducted on online platforms. Digital 
platforms were used for, among others, webinars held by the 
entity with tourism trade partners on various interventions 
including the repatriation of international tourists, virtual 
tours, accessing the Tourism Relief Fund and business 
sustainability.

The plan to recover from the pandemic and reconstruct the 
tourisms sector was presented to the Board in June. The 
entity engaged tourism trade partners on industry recovery 
interventions in the face of the COVID-19 pandemic, and 
the CEO and the Board interacted with shareholders and 
the provincial government to discuss the Tourism Recovery 
Plan.

The KZN Tourism Recovery Task Team was established and 
met regularly to plan interventions.

The MEC for Economic Development, Tourism and 
Environmental A"airs engaged Chambers of Commerce to 
discuss the industry’s call to open up the tourism economy 
through transformation measures. These included bringing 
rural and township communities into the tourism economy 
through the Homestays concept, creating new cultural 
and heritage tourism products in rural areas, and training 
emerging tourism entrepreneurs to become a vibrant part of 
the tourism industry. 

TKZN also introduced Provincial Tourism Forum (PTF) 
meetings every fortnight to support tourism businesses 
to apply for relief funding, including UIF TERS and the 
National Tourism Relief Fund, to gather information on 
business closures and job losses, and to ensure alignment of 
local recovery plans to the provincial and national recovery 
plans.

MR SITHEMBISO MADLALA
Chairperson, Board of Tourism 
KwaZulu-Natal
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Part ATourism Development launched a series of online 
workshops to help small tourism enterprises navigate 
the unprecedented environment and equip them with 
information, knowledge and tools necessary to function 
amidst and after the pandemic. The topics covered by the 
online workshops included the impact of COVID-19 on the 
tourism sector, managing debt and funding solutions for 
tourism recovery, and best practices for tourism recovery 
through digital marketing.

The KZN Tourism Relief Fund for tourism enterprises and 
tourist guides a"ected by the pandemic was approved and 
the roll out began towards the end of the reporting period.
Initiatives aimed at enhancing visitor experiences, improving 
the quality of tourism products and increasing the 
participation of black owned small enterprises in the tourism 
sector continued throughout the lockdown.

These developments will add to the cultural o"erings in 
the province, spread the benefits of tourism to rural and 
marginalized communities, and contribute to the overall 
transformation of the provincial tourism sector, making it 
more inclusive and sustainable.

TKZN also entered into tourism trade partnerships that saw 
the entity boost in domestic numbers when intra-provincial 
travel was allowed. This includes a partnership with booking 
agent Travelstart to encourage bookings into the province. 
Despite COVID-19 restrictions, it is encouraging to note 
that the campaign succeeded in spreading bookings to many 
regions across the province and extended the average length 
of stay.

With these initiatives well underway, the Board is confident 
that tourism will once again contribute to greater job 
creation, economic growth and social cohesion once 
the COVID-19 pandemic is brought under control and 
restrictions are eased. 

Two critical spino"s from the pandemic were, firstly, the 
realisation by all stakeholders that transformation in the 
industry was inevitable and, secondly, that we need each 
other as partners more than ever to collectively rebuild the 
tourism industry.

The Board thanks the MEC for Economic Development, 
Tourism and Environmental A"airs, Mr Ravi Pillay, for his 
guidance and leadership through di!cult times.

I would like to express my gratitude to colleagues on 
the Board for their valuable insights and advice, to the 
management team and sta" of Tourism KwaZulu-Natal for 
prevailing under dire circumstances, and to all our tourism 
partners for ensuring that every visitor to the Zulu Kingdom 
has a meaningful and memorable stay.

.............................................................................
Mr Sithembiso Madlala
Chairperson, Board of Tourism KwaZulu-Natal
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Part ACHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER'S REPORT
TOURIST TRAVEL THROUGHOUT 
THE WORLD WAS BROUGHT TO 
ITS KNEES AS THE CORONAVIRUS 
PANDEMIC SWEPT THROUGH 
EVERY CONTINENT, CLOSING 
BORDERS AND BRINGING TRAVEL 
TO A STANDSTILL OVER THE PAST 
YEAR.
In KwaZulu-Natal, domestic tourism performed better than 
expected over the recent festive season, making up some 
of the losses in international arrivals in the period under 
review. The province welcomed 675 000 visitors over the 
December holiday season, with an estimated economic 
benefit of R 1.6 billion.

However, this is a far cry from our performance in the 
previous year, when KwaZulu-Natal welcomed 7,1 million 
domestic tourists who spent R9.3-billion, and 747 183 
international arrivals brought in an additional R7.5 billion. In 
2019 the province was on the brink of reclaiming its status 
as the most visited province in South Africa – then the 
pandemic struck. 

Nevertheless, the recent arrivals statistics indicate the vast 
potential of the tourism sector to contribute to economic 
growth and support jobs in KwaZulu-Natal in the absence of 
obstacles.

Despite the drastic negative impact on tourism, TKZN was 
quick to adjust its focus and adapt to the new reality which 
confronted the sector. The entity continued to execute 
on its mandate and complied with stringent corporate 
governance principles throughout the year. 

TKZN’s operations were modified to deal with the 
changing circumstances and execute its mandate applying 
innovation and digitalisation at every opportunity. A great 
deal of flexibility had to be built into plans, allowing tactics 
to change at short notice as regulations changed and 
restrictions were implemented. 

The closure of information o!ces and the limited movement 
of tourists meant that digital platforms such as websites and 
mobile apps had to be used to distribute information.
Several digital engagements with tourism partners were 
held to ensure the sustainability of tourism in KZN. Online 
workshops were conducted to support the tourism industry 
and to ensure that marketing the province continued during 
the pandemic.

Small tourism enterprises were equipped with information, 
knowledge and tools necessary to function in a COVID-19 
environment. The workshops were conducted using online 
platforms and TKZN’s YouTube channel live streaming. 
Several emerging black owned tourism enterprises 
benefitted from the enterprise development support, placing 
them in a sound position to bounce back with vigour when 
tourism fully resumes in the Province. 

The R20 million KZN Tourism Relief Fund targeting tourism 
enterprises and tourist guides a"ected by COVID-19 was 
approved and its operations has commenced. 

TKZN used several industry platforms to share the 
provincial Tourism Recovery Plan, inviting partnerships and 
cooperation from all players represented by associations, 
municipalities and Community Tourism Organisations. 

Aggressive marketing strategies were deployed to ensure 
that the province remains top of mind among tourists in 
the future. Working with South African Tourism, TKZN 
conducted destination training for the global trade. These 
presentations profiled our destination and showed that 
KZN was ready to receive international tourists, with 
establishments adhering to strict COVID-19 protocols.

MS PHINDILE MAKWAKWA 
Acting Chief Executive O!cer
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Part ATourism KwaZulu-Natal (TKZN) and Southern African 
Tourism Services Association (SATSA) joined forces to 
host virtual familiarisation tours to showcase the main 
tourism attractions of the province, in readiness for travel 
restrictions coming to an end.

The digital drive was run across all TKZN digital social media 
platforms, including partner platforms, with destination 
videos enjoying over one million views and the exposure 
valued at over R60 million. 

TKZN used every opportunity available to promote the 
destination in the media during the year, resulting in over 
R429 million worth of editorial coverage – about R350 
million more than the previous year.

In addition to maintaining a high marketing profile, TKZN 
continued to facilitate the development of several new 
tourism experiences in the province to diversify tourism 
experiences o"ered at our destination. 

The relief measures implemented over the year under 
review, along with vibrant marketing and communications 
tactics and ongoing product development, are aimed at 
ensuring recovery of the provincial tourism sector as soon as 
COVID-19 restrictions are lifted around the world.

Despite the setbacks we faced in the year under review, 
TKZN is ready to restore the performance of tourism, and 
reinstate its contribution to sustaining jobs, growing the 
economy, and bringing the people of the world together.

The potential for tourism to forge greater social cohesion 
cannot be overlooked at this time, when the pandemic has 
isolated communities and left people feeling separated from 
each other.

TKZN is aware that many small tourism business operators 
have been left financially and emotionally drained by the 
impact of the pandemic. In addition to the relief measures 
already implemented, we will continue to seek ways to 
support those in distress. 

I thank the MEC for Economic Development, Tourism 
and Environmental A"airs, Mr Ravi Pillay and the Board of 
Tourism KwaZulu-Natal for their guidance and support over 
a di!cult year. I also thank the entire management team 
and sta" of Tourism KZN, who each played a pivotal role in 
pulling together towards a common goal and stayed focused 
and committed to ensuring that the organisation delivered 
on its mandate.

We look forward to the day when tourism can resume 
making its economic and social contribution to the 
development of KwaZulu-Natal and all its people.  

.............................................................................
Ms Phindile Makwakwa 
Acting Chief Executive O!cer
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Part ASTATEMENT OF  
RESPONSIBILITY  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

The Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 
1999), as amended, requires the Accounting Authority to 
ensure that the Public Entity keeps full and proper records 
of the financial a"airs of the Public Entity. 

It also requires that the Annual Financial Statements fairly 
present the state of a"airs of the Public Entity, its business, 
its financial results, its performance against predetermined 
objectives and its financial position as at the end of each 
financial year in terms of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practices (GRAP).

KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority acknowledges that the 
Annual Financial Statements are the responsibility of the 
members of the Authority. 

The Auditor-General is responsible for independently 
auditing and reporting on the annual financial statements.

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared 
in accordance with statements of GRAP. These annual 
financial statements are based on appropriate accounting 
policies, supported by reasonable and prudent judgements 
and estimates.

The members have reviewed the Public Entity’s budgets and 
cash flow forecasts for the year ended 31 March 2022. On 
the basis of this review, and in view of the current financial 
position, the members have every reason to believe that the 
Public Entity will be a going concern in the year ahead and 
have continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing 
the Annual Financial Statements.

To enable the members to meet the above responsibilities, 
the Board sets standards and implements systems of internal 
controls and risk management that are designed to provide 
reasonable, but not absolute assurance against material 
misstatements and losses.

The public entity maintains internal financial controls to 
provide assurance regarding the safeguarding of assets 
against unauthorised use or disposition, and the maintenance 
of proper accounting records and the reliability of financial 
information used within the business.

In the opinion of members, based on information available 
to date, the Annual Financial Statements fairly present the 
financial position of the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority 
at 31 March 2021 and the results of its operations and 
cash flow information for the year and that the Code of 
Corporate Governance has been adhered to.

The Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 
March 2021, set out on pages 70 to 101, were approved by 
the Accounting Authority in terms of section 51(1) (f) of the 
Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999), 
as amended and are signed on its behalf by:

.
............................................................................
Mr Paulos Ngcobo
Audit and Risk Committee Chairperson  

............................................................................. 
Ms Phindile Makwakwa
Acting Chief Executive O!cer

MR PAULOS NGCOBO 
Audit and Risk Committee 
Chairperson
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Part A

The KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority, which trades as Tourism KwaZulu-Natal (TKZN) was established in terms of the 
KwaZulu-Natal tourism act, 1996 as amended, by Act No.2 of 2002.

Our Vision is to position the Province of KwaZulu-Natal as Africa’s leading  
destination, nationally and internationally.

MISSION
To initiate, facilitate, co-ordinate and implement strategic 
tourism marketing and demand-driven tourism development 
programmes which grow tourism, thereby serving to achieve:

• the transformation of tourism sector; and
• provide economic benefits to all stakeholders and the 

province.

OBJECTIVES 
• Strategic leadership in destination marketing and 

corporate governance 
• Increase share of domestic trips 
• Increase share of international arrivals
• Increase tourism spend
• Increase business events in the province
• Increase geographic spread 
• Improve destination image and service excellence
• Responsible and demand driven tourism development
• Transformation 
• Enabling environment

VALUES
• We value the contribution of our people by 

recognising their performance and appreciating them 
as people.

• We all strive for superior delivery of customer service 
both internally and externally. 

• We are committed to making KZN the top 
destination in Africa.

• In performing our duties, we will trust each other to 
be honest and reliable.

• We will respect each other and communicate in a way 
that demonstrates this.

• In all our dealings we will act with integrity, so that 
people trust us. 

• Through our professionalism, people will value dealing 
with us.

• Team spirit is what will make TKZN a great place to 
work!

13
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Part A

LEGISLATIVE AND  
OTHER MANDATES 
The KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority, trading as Tourism 
KwaZulu-Natal (TKZN), was established in terms of the 
KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Act, 1996, as amended by Act No. 
2 of 2002. The Organisation is accountable to the KwaZulu-
Natal provincial government’s Department of Economic 
Development, Tourism and Environmental A"airs (EDTEA). 
In terms of the Act, TKZN is responsible directly and 
indirectly for the development, promotion and marketing of 
tourism into and within the Province, with the power:

1. To investigate and make recommendations to the 
Cabinet, through the Minister, on any matter relating 
directly or indirectly to the promotion, development or 
marketing of tourism for KZN; 

2. To be solely responsible for marketing and promoting 
the Province as a whole, to international and domestic 
tourism markets in competition and cooperation with 
other provinces in the Republic, and in cooperation with 
municipalities; 

3. Within the framework of national and provincial tourism 
policies to coordinate with, advise and guide municipali-
ties, tourism operators, tourism establishments and  
organisations or institutions whose activities or aims 
have an impact on and relate to the promotion,  
development or marketing of tourism in KwaZulu-Natal; 

4. For the purposes of implementing provincial tourism 
policy, promoting, developing and marketing tourism for 
KwaZulu-Natal, with the prior approval of the Minister: 
 
a. To establish and operate one or more companies, or  
 other similar bodies, and to buy and sell shares 
 in such companies, closed corporations or other 
 such similar bodies; 
b. To enter into joint ventures with other institutions, 

organisations, bodies or persons; 
c. To become partners or shareholders in companies, 

closed corporations or other bodies and to sell all or 
part of such shares or interests; 

d. To raise funds through donations and sponsorships; 
e. To enter into agreements and contracts with any 

institution, body, organisation or person anywhere 
in South Africa; 

f. To enter into international agreements and 
contracts, with the approval of the Minister, 
provided that the approval of the Minister may not 
be unreasonably withheld and must be given within 
a reasonable time;

g. To register, accredit, classify, grade and certify 
tourism operators and establishment in the 
Province;

h. To implement levies and other charges on tourism 
operators and establishments in the Province; 

i. To undertake research for the e"ective 
implementation and development of provincial 
tourism policy; 

j. To maintain a database of tourism operators and 
establishments within the Province; 

k. To formulate and implement processes to increase 
public access to information about provincial 
tourism operators, establishments and other 
tourism resources in the Province.

5. To perform any other function or activity as prescribed 
or directed by the Minister in relation to the  
implementation, development, marketing and  
promotion of provincial tourism policy; 

In terms of 4.g) above:
• The functions of the Tourism Grading Council 

have been delegated by the Minister to the South 
African Tourism Board. According to Chapter 4 
of the Tourism Act (No.3 of 2014), a function of 
the Tourism Grading Council is to implement and 
manage the national grading council for tourism, as 
contemplated in Section 28 of the said Act. 

• The function of registering tourism businesses and 
operators has been delegated to the provincial 
department, EDTEA, by the White Paper on the 
Development and Promotion of Tourism in KwaZulu-
Natal (2008).

TKZN is further established in terms of the Public Finance 
Management Act, 1999, as amended (PFMA), through 
which it is listed as a Schedule 3C Provincial Public Entity. 
As such, all prescripts and regulations arising from the 
PFMA are applicable to its governance and operations.
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Part A

MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE:  
BOARD MEETINGS ! 2020/21 

Member
25 May 
2020

27 May 
2020

19 June 
2020

17 August 
2020

11 Sept
2020

29 Sept
2020

13 Nov  
2020 

3 Dec
2020

4 Mar  
2021

23 Mar
2021

Mr Sthembiso Madlala 
(Chairperson) P P P P P P P P P P

Ms Mato Madlala A A P P P A P A P P

Prof Thandi Nzama P P P P P P P P P P

Mr Thamsanqa Mzileni P P P P P P P P P P

Mr Terence Delomoney P P P P P P P P P P

Mr Paulos Ngcobo P P P P P P P P P P

Prof. Thokozani Nzimakwe P P P P P P P P P P

 
MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE:  
HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE 2020/21

Member 12 June 
2020  

25 June 
2020

23 July 
2020

15 Oct 
2020

2 Dec 
2020

10 Feb 
2021

24 Mar 
2021

Mr T Mzileni (Chairperson) P P P P P P P

Prof. T Nzimakwe P P P P P P P

Prof. T Nzama P P P P P P P

Ms M Madlala A P P P A P P

 
MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE:  
MARKETING AND TOURISM DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE " 2020/21

Member
12 June 
2020

21 July 
2020

13 Oct 
2020

8 Feb 
2021

Mr T Delomoney (Chairperson) P P P P

Prof. T Nzama P P P P

Mr P Ngcobo P P P P

P = Present A = Apology N/A= Not Applicable 
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Part A

MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE:  
CONVENTION BUREAU COMMITTEE " 2020/21

Member 11 June 
2020

22 July 
2020

19 Oct 
2020

9 Feb 
2021

Prof T Nzama (Chairperson) P P P P

Mr T Mzileni P P P P

Prof T Nzimakwe P P P P

 
MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE:  
AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE 2020/21

Member
13 May 
2020

14 May 
2020

3 July
2020

17 August 
2020

27 July
2020

25 Sept
2020

19 Oct  
2020 

4 Nov
2020

11 Feb  
2021

Mr P Ngcobo (Chairperson) P P P P P P P P P

Mr M Ngcobo  
(Independent  Member) P P P P P P A P P

Mr D Ramuedzisi  
(Independent Member) P P P P P P P P P

Prof. T Nzimakwe P P P P P P P P P

Mr T Mzileni P P P P P P P P P

Ms M Madlala P P P P P P P P P

Prof. Thokozani Nzimakwe P P P P P P P P P

P = Present A = Apology N/A= Not Applicable 
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Chief Executive O!cer
Vacant

Grade 2

General Manager: 
Tourism Information 

Services Vacant 
Grade 5

Manager: Researcher
Vacant Grade 7 

Supply Chain 
Management  

Assistant (A/F)
Grade 12

Accounts Administrator: 
Creditors Vacant – Grade 10

Supply Chain 
Management 

Assistant Vacant 
Grade 1

General 
Assistant 
Vacant 

Grade 17

Senior Manager:
HR & Administration  

Vacant
Grade 6Researcher

Vacant
Grade 9

Administrative 
Co-Ordinator- 

Grade 10
Vacant

Business 
Development & 

Relations Manager
Richard Wyllie

(W/M) - Grade 7

Departmental Assistant
Yolanda Shangase
(A/F) – Grade 12

Business 
Development & 

Relations Manager
Sonto Mayise

(A/F) - Grade 7

Prospecting 
Research           
Manager

Mdudeni Biyela 
(A/M)

Grade 7

 General Manager: Convention Bureau 
Vacant 

Grade 4

Chief Financial O!cer
Grade 4
Vacant

Executive Assistant
Zama Kubheka

(A/F)
Grade 10

Board Secretary & 
Compliance O!cer
Pinky Radebe (A/F)

Grade 7

Executive Assistant
Nokuzola Mathe
(A/F) – Grade 10

Researcher
Wayne Ti$in

(C/M) – Grade 9

Manager: Information 
Services Support

Velile Mpofu (A/M)- 
Grade 7

Departmental Assistant
Zandile Ngcobo

(A/F) – Grade 12

Manager: 
Transformation

Samora Nqweniso
(A/M) – Grade 7

Manager: Destination
Development 
Abie Wentzel 

(W/M) – Grade 7

 Manager: Tourism 
Investment

Vukile Khuzwayo
(A/M) – Grade 7

Supply Chain O!cer 
Thembekile Mdlophane 

(A/F)
Grade 9

Accounts Administrator: 
debtors Luvuyo Zwayi 

(A/M) Grade 10 

Receptionist
Vacant  

Grade 13

Human Resources 
O!cer

Mphathiswa 
Golodza
(A/M)

Grade 9

General Assistants
Virginia Mvubu

(A/F)
Grade 17

Distribution Clerk
Fidelis Mhlongo

(A/M)  
Grade 14

Departmental Assistant
Mbali Dladla

(A/F)- Grade 12

Senior Manager: ICT
Anir Bidesi

(I/M) – Grade 6

,Network 
Administrator

Mondli Mdladla
(A/M) - Grade 9

Information O!cer
Sonke Mdluli

(A/M) – Grade 11

Information O!cer
Robert Ndlela

(A/M)- Grade 11

Information O!cer 
Imorgan Msomi

(A/M) – Grade 11

Information O!cer 
Phindile Mjwara
(A/F) – Grade 11

Distribution 
Coordinator

Sidney 
Dweba

(A/M) – 
Grade 9Information O!cer

Amanda Nxele (A/F)
Information O!cer
Nasreen Shaik (I/F)

Grade 11

  Info O!cer (Cape 
Town O!ce)

Nkululeko 
Maphumulo

(A/M) – Grade 11

Information O!cer
Mbongeni Shozi

(A/M)
Grade 11

Information O!cer
Nombuso Njapa
(A/F) – Grade 11

Information O!cer
Vacant – Grade 11

Information O!cer
Vacant – Grade 11

Data Capturer
Fikile Nhlapo

(A/F) – Grade 13

Information 
Systems 

Coordinator
Slindile Khanyile 
(A/F) – Grade 9

Data Capturer
Mbali Maphalala
(A/F) – Grade 13

Chief Operating O!cer
Phindile Makwakwa (A/F)

Grade 4

General Manager: Tourism 
Development Nhlanhla 

Khumalo (A/M)
Grade 5

Financial Accountant
Akhona Pantsi 

(A/F) – Grade 7

Performance Monitoring 
Co-Ordinator

Sibongile Msomi (A/F) – 
Grade 10

DURBAN KZN 
CONVENTION BUREAU

Region Manager: 
Asia, Australasia & 

Americas Vacant- Grade 7

Region Manager:  
Africa & Domestic

Grade 7 

Customer Care 
Coordinator

Vacant 
Grade 9

Pr Coordinator
Grade 9
Vacant

Departmental Assistant 
Lungile Nembula (A/F) 

Grade 12

Region Manager: Europe 
Keith Matthews (A/M)

Grade 7

Region Coordinator: Europe 
Reggie Sithole (A/M) 

Grade 9

Region Coordinator: Asia, 
Australasia & Americas 

Thabsile Mthethwa
(A/F) – Grade 9

Region Coordinator: 
Africa, & Domestic
Minenhle Mhlongo
(A/M) – Grade 9

Guest Relations
    O!cer Mawande 

Bantwini (A/M)
Grade 9

Communications
Coordinator Nhlanhla 

Ngwenya (A/F)
Grade 9

General Manager: 
Marketing

Thulisile Galelekile
(A/F) Grade 5

Departmental 
Administration  

& Event Support
Siphokazi Canca 

(A/F)
 Grade 12

Senior Manager:  
Pr & Comms Vacant

Grade 6

Projects & Management
Goitsemang Molubi

(A/F) – Grade 7

A/F African Female
A/M African Male
C/F Coloured Male

C/M Coloured Male
I/F Indian Female
I/M Indian Male

W/F White Female
W/M White Male                            

Gender Indicators:

Colour Indicators:   Vacant Position (20)     Filled Positions (50)

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2021 ! TKZN
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BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS
During the course of the 
2020/2021 financial year, 
TKZN’s Board of directors 
comprised of 10 members, 
as depicted below.

PROF. THOKOZANI NZIMAKWE
Board Member

MS PHINDILE MAKWAKWA
Acting Chief Executive O!cer and Chief 
Operating O!cer

MR THAMSANQA MZILENI
Board Member Human Resources 
and Compensation Committee (From 
16/10/2019)

MR TERENCE DELOMONEY
Marketing and Tourism Development 
Committee Chairperson

MR PAULOS NGCOBO
Audit and Risk Committee Chairperson

MR SITHEMBISO MADLALA
Board Chairperson

PROF THANDI NZAMA
Convention Bereau Committee Chairperson

MS MATO MADLALA
Deputy Chairperson as at 31 December 
2019

MS PINKY RADEBE
Board Secretary
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EXECUTIVE 
MANAGEMENT
During the 2020/2021 
financial year, TKZN’s 
Executive Management 
team comprised nine 
members, as shown below.

Vacant
Senior Manager: 

Public Relations and 
Communications

MR LINDANI SIDAKI
Acting Chief Financial O!cer

MS PHINDILE MAKWAKWA
Acting Chief Executive O!cer and Chief
Operating O!cer

MS THULISILE GALELEKILE
GM Marketing (from 1 November 2018)

MR ANIR BIDESI
Senior Manager: ICT and Acting GM: 
Tourism Information Services

MS SONTO MAYISE
Acting Chief Convention Bureau O!cer
(18 June 2018 to date)

MR NHLANHLA KHUMALO 
General Manager: Tourism Development
(From 1 February 2019) 

MPHATHISWA GOLODZA 
Acting Senior Manager: Human Resource
(Acting from 1 Dec 2019 to current)



Opportunities
Do Exist.
Large tourism enterprises are willing to
provide enterprise and skills mentorship
programmes, alongside financial
assistance and programme facilitation
from Government.

20
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1 MF World Economic Outlook Update, 23 July 2019
2 2019 MTBPS

SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS 
Tourism KwaZulu-Natal executes its mandate, and seeks to 
achieve its vision and mission, in a complex environment, 
impacted by global, national and provincial events, which 
directly a"ect the pursuit of its desired impact and in 
delivering on its mandate. 

EXTERNAL ENVIRONMENT 
ANALYSIS
 
MACRO!ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT
World economic growth is increasing after COVID-19 
impacted global trade in 2020. The IMF predicts 6% global 
growth for 2021. Multiplying global risks have contributed 
to slowing growth in both developed and developing 
economies. Brexit, tari"s and trade wars have contributed 
to an increasingly negative economic outlook, along with 

a generalised increase in political tension and uncertainty, 
as well as a growing unease at the unprecedented levels of 
central bank interventions in key economies. 

The IMF noted that first quarter GDP in China was stronger 
than forecast, but indicators for the second quarter of 
2019 suggest an overall weakening of activity. A slowdown 
in China means a slowdown in the world, as that nation’s 
demand has been key to global growth over the past few 
decades. Elsewhere in emerging Asia, as well as in Latin 
America, economic activity has been well below expectation. 
The Eurozone, a key South African trading partner, is also 
slowing1.
 
South Africa’s forecast growth for 2019 was 1.5% at the 
time of the February 2019 Budget Speech. By the October 
Medium-Term Budget Policy Statement (MTBPS), it had 
been revised down to 0.5%, reflecting weaker exports and 
total inbound investment.

Figure 1: GDP growth forecasts 2019-2021
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As South Africa’s GDP growth trend has continued to decline, debt levels have continued to rise. Exacerbating the less 
favourable global conditions, local contributing factors to the slowdown have included policy uncertainty, electricity supply 
instability, lower investment levels, insu!cient SOC investment, and poor educational outcomes2.
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Figure 2: South African real GDP growth

South Africa’s relative global competitiveness has declined, due to slower implementation of reforms than peer countries. 
The government has run large budget deficits since the global financial crisis in 2008/09, amounting to an increasingly 
unmanageable mountain of accumulated debt. Increased government borrowing has unfortunately failed to equate to 
e"ective government spending. South Africa has experienced one of the highest increases in debt to GDP ratio amongst 
peer nations over the last ten years. 

Figure 3: Ten year change in debt to GDP ratio 
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Of course, a contracting economy means contracting income for government. The current account deficit is expected to 
run at 3.5% of GDP over the next three years, reflecting low import growth due to weaker domestic demand, low export 
demand, and generalised slowdown of growth across the globe.
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Figure 4: Main budget revenue and spending
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The estimated total revenues shortfall for 2019/20 is R52.5 billion. This reflects a poor employment outlook, with lower 
wages and job losses resulting in reduced personal income tax collection. The di!cult trading environment means less  
profit for businesses, which lowers corporate tax. Weak household consumption means the State takes in less revenue 
through VAT. 

Government allocates funds to its central policy objectives – reducing poverty  
and inequality – through the budget. 

Over the next three years, spending will total R6.3 trillion, with 48 percent of this  
amount going towards social grants, education and health.

In the context of weak growth, however, revenue shortfalls and rising spending pressures are 
threatening government’s ability to maintain existing levels of service provision  

and infrastructure investment.

- MTBPS, 2019 -

Forecasts for the next few years are less than optimistic, 
both locally and globally. For South Africa, serious economic 
reforms are urgently needed to boost GDP growth. Top of 
National Treasury’s list of reforms that can be implemented 
immediately is supporting tourism by reducing the cost of 
travelling to South Africa, and cutting red tape for small 
businesses in the tourism sector3.

The slow growth of the economy is resulting in low levels of 
government-collected revenue, and means that government 
is unable to meet the increasing demands for spending in 
priority areas. 

KWAZULU!NATAL SOCIO!ECONOMIC CONTEXT:
At around 94,361 km2 in area, KwaZulu-Natal is the 
third smallest province by land area, but the second most 
populous after Gauteng, with around 11.3 million people. It 
is the second largest contributor to South Africa’s GDP, at 
16.2% in 2018. 

It is located in the southeast of the country with a long 
Indian Ocean shoreline, and shares borders with three other 
provinces (Eastern Cape, Mpumalanga and Free State), as 
well as the countries of Eswatini, Lesotho and Mozambique. 
The Port of Durban is sub-Saharan Africa’s largest shipping 
terminal, and the fourth-largest container terminal in the 
Southern Hemisphere. Richards Bay is the largest coal 
export terminal in the world.

3 2019 Medium-Term Budget Policy Statement (MTBPS)
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4 The REB Provincial Review 2016, KwaZulu-Natal
5 Overcoming Poverty and Inequality in South Africa, An Assessment of Drivers, Constraints and Opportunities; SA Dept of 
Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation, Statistics SA, World Bank, March 2018 
6 Statistics SA (2019). Mid-year Population Estimates. Accessed 08 October 2019.
7 Ibid.
8 UNWTO (2020), Impact Assessment of the COVID-19 Outbreak on International Tourism, Updated 24 March 2020.

The Province’s economy performs in most economic 
spheres, including manufacturing, tourism, agriculture, 
mining, trade, construction and finance. Due to its strategic 
location along the east coast, it has a notable competitive 
advantage driving tourism in the Province. It has nine “blue 
flag” beaches, is home to the Drakensberg Mountains, 
the iSimangaliso World Heritage Site, numerous private 
and public “Big Five” game reserves, the battlefields, and 
the Oribi Gorge. Despite this diverse economic base, 
distribution of benefit from economic activity is far from 
equitably distributed. The Province is an example of the 
lasting e"ects of spatial displacement due to Apartheid 
geography. KwaZulu-Natal has a relatively high share of 
former “homeland” areas within its borders. In 2015, 37% of 
the population lived in these regions, as compared to 27% for 
the country as a whole. Only 24% of working age people in 
these regions were employed compared to 46% in the rest 
of KwaZulu-Natal. Matric certificates were held by 31% of 
the Province’s working-age population aged over 20, but 
only by 24% in the former “homeland” regions4. 

Poverty is consistently higher among South Africans living 
in rural areas than for those in urban areas, with the gap 
between rural and urban poverty rates averaging around  
40 percentage points5. This is the reason that the provinces 
with the highest headcount of adult poverty are Limpopo 
(67.5%), Eastern Cape (67.3%), and KwaZulu-Natal 
(60.7%). 

While overall lower than the national average, 
unemployment continues to rise in the Province, having 
ballooned from 21.8% in 2018 to 26.1% in 2019, an increase 
of 4.3%. Reducing work opportunities has led to the 
Province experiencing a net out-migration of 76 551 people 
in 20196.  

Collectively, KwaZulu-Natal has a very young population, 
with children and young people making up approximately 
two-thirds of the total population. This creates tremendous 
potential for the future, but also creates some key challenges 
in the present. The dependency ratio is highly skewed 
towards children, at approximately 50%, as compared to 
older people at around 9%. The predominance of young 
people has the potential to boost the Province’s future 
economic output, but only if those young people are being 
developed through a quality education system, from early 

childhood development (ECD), through basic education, to 
technical and vocational education and training, as well as 
university education7. 

GLOBAL TOURISM ENVIRONMENT
With record growth in 2019 of 4% (1,5bn) tourists globally, 
the impact of COVID-19 in 2020 saw global tourism 
decline by 73%. UNWTO has outlined two scenarios for 
2021, which consider a possible rebound in international 
travel in the second half of the year. These are based on a 
number of factors, most notably a major lifting of travel 
restrictions, the success of vaccination programmes or the 
introduction of harmonized protocols such as the Digital 
Green Certificate planned by the European Commission.

The first scenario points to a rebound in July, which would 
result in a 66% increase in international arrivals for the 
year 2021 compared to the historic lows of 2020. In this 
case, arrivals would still be 55% below the levels recorded in 
2019. The second scenario considers a potential rebound in 
September, leading to a 22% increase in arrivals compared 
to last year. Still, this would be 67% below the levels of 2019. 
(UNWTO: 2021)

According to the UNWTO, 1.5 billion international tourist 
arrivals were recorded in 2019. This was a 4% increase on the 
previous year, confirming tourism as a leading and resilient 
economic sector, especially in view of current uncertainties. 
In 2020, the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic brought 
the world to a standstill for more than a dozen months with 
unparalleled and unforeseen impacts in the lives of global 
communities, their economies, their societies and their 
livelihoods, and there is an ongoing risk of a global recession 
and a massive loss of jobs8. The ongoing escalation of the 
COVID-19 pandemic has seen the original forecast of 4% 
growth in 2020 change on numerous occasions. This is 
due to the unprecedented nature of the pandemic and its 
ongoing impacts on the global economy. 

As of March 2021, the UNWTO reported that international 
arrivals fell by 73% in 2020. The demand for international 
travel has remained low into 2021 as well. International 
tourist arrivals (overnight visitors) declined by 87% in 
January 2021, amid new outbreaks and tighter travel 
restrictions. This follows a decline of 85% in the last quarter 
of 2020 (October-December).
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In terms of the global tourism regions, the Asia and the 
Pacific region, which continues to have the highest level of 
travel restrictions in place, recorded the largest decrease 
in international arrivals in January 2021 – a decline of 
96%. Europe and Africa both saw a decline of 85% in 
arrivals, while the Middle East recorded a decline of 84%. 
International arrivals in the Americas decreased by 77% in 
January 2021, following somewhat better results in the last 
quarter of 2020.

The UNWTO has confirmed that 32% of global destinations 
have implemented complete border closures from early 
February 2021, while another 34% have partial closures 
of their borders. Based on this, the UNWTO expects 
international tourist arrivals to be down about 85% in the 
first quarter of 2021 over the same period of 2019. This  
 
 

would represent a loss of some 260 million international 
arrivals when compared to pre-pandemic levels.

The UNWTO has outlined two forecasted scenarios for 
2021. The first scenario points to a rebound in July, which 
would result in a 66% increase in international arrivals for 
the year 2021 compared to the historic lows of 2020. In this 
case, arrivals would still be 55% below the levels recorded in 
2019. The second scenario considers a potential rebound in 
September, leading to a 22% increase in arrivals compared 
to last year. Still, this would be 67% below the levels of 
2019. These scenarios consider a number of factors such as 
a gradual improvement of the epidemiological situation (i.e. 
measures that help contain the virus), a continued roll-out 
of the COVID-19 vaccine, a significant improvement in 
traveler confidence and a major lifting of travel restrictions, 
in particular in Europe and the Americas.

Figure 5: Global travel is forecast

The global travel forecast by the UNWTO provides two scenarios. Scenario 1 indicates that if travel travels restrictions 
are lifted by July 2021, a –55% decline of tourism, compared to 2019 is expected. Scenario 2 indicates a –67% decline in 
tourism compared to 2019, if travel restrictions are lifted by September 2021.
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SOUTH AFRICAN  
TOURISM ENVIRONMENT
In the three years, to 2019 total tourism trips in South Africa grew by 2.3% while spend by tourists grew by 3.3%. 
However, in 2020 international tourism trips into South Africa declined by 72.6%, to 2 802 320. This was due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic that has decimated the global tourism sector. The number of domestic trips also declined (by 57%) in 
2020 due to a number of lockdown restrictions that prohibited travel or discouraged it. 

At the time of writing, the full year (12 month) results for 2020 were not available. The results for the first three quarters of 
2020 (January – September 2020) are outlined in the sections below. 

2019 2020*

Domestic Tourism
Trips 19.1mn 12.2mn

Direct Spend R27.4bn R37.6bn

International
Arrivals 7.6mn 2.4mn

Direct Spend R59.7bn R19.4bn

Total Tourism
Trips 26.7.0mn 15.0mn

Direct Spend R87.1bn R57.0bn

Figure 8: South African tourism - Trips and spend (2016–2020) 
*2020 = Data available for January to September only.

INTERNATIONAL TOURISM
Between 2018 and 2020 the number of tourists between the ages of 24-34 years were consistently more than any other 
age group. This was followed by the 35-44 age group. Thus, the 25-44 age group can be seen as s significant segment in the 
international market.  

Figure 9: Age breakdown of tourists to South Africa
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The majority of tourists that visit South Africa have visited the country before and only 15.9% were coming for the first time. 
It is important to note that the data in Figure 10 is based on Q1-Q3 of each calendar year from 2016-2020. This is based on 
the approach to compare the same data for each year. 
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Jan-Sep 2016 Jan-Sep 2017 Jan-Sep 2018 Jan-Sep 2019 Jan-Sep 2020

First timers 15.0% 19.5% 17.9% 17.0% 15.9%

2 - 3 times 11.0% 13.3% 12.6% 10.5% 10.7%

4 - 5 times 7.1% 10.9% 9.4% 7.3% 6.7%

6 - 9 times 8.1% 11.8% 10.3% 8.8% 9.3%

10 times or more 32.2% 40.5% 47.4% 37.3% 29.2%

Figure 10: Repeat rate of international tourists

The average length of stay for an international visitor in 2020 (Jan-Sep) was eleven (11) nights, up from nine (9) in 2016. In 
previous years, 50-70%of international visitors stayed in unpaid accommodation (VFR, visiting friends and relatives), after 
which hotels and self-catering establishments are the most popular. There is minimal data available that shows the trends of 
accommodation choices for international tourists in 2020.

Around 17% of international tourists visit more than one province. Gauteng is the most visited province, followed by 
Limpopo, Mpumalanga, and Western Cape.

Provincial Share (Jan-Sep 2020) Share (%)

Gauteng 26%

Limpopo 21%

Western Cape 14%

Mpumalanga 14%

Free State 10%

KwaZulu-Natal 6%

North West 4%

Eastern Cape 4%

Northern Cape 1%

Figure 11: Provincial share of international tourist arrivals, 2018



29

Part B

In previous years, the three major barriers preventing 
international visitors from choosing South Africa are 
concerns for their safety and security, the expense of getting 
to the country (cost once here is not so much of a concern), 
and the appeal of other destinations. However, in 2020, the 
reasons are generally in line with the situation at a global 
level – the travel restrictions and the rollout of vaccination 
programmes are the two main bottlenecks for travel in to 
South Africa (at the time of writing this report).

DOMESTIC TOURISM 
In 2020, there was a sharp decrease in the number of trips 
in all provinces excluding Eastern Cape, which had a 124.0% 
increase in destination trips compared to the same period of 
2019. Limpopo experienced the highest decline of 72.3%. 
Conversely, Free State experienced the least decrease in 
trips to the province (15.6%). Gauteng registered the highest 
number of trips to the province (2.8 million).

The purpose of travel for domestic tourism continued to be 
dominated by VFR (48%) (Visiting Friends and Relatives) 
and Holiday (21%). VFR tourists had an estimated direct 
spend of R9.8-billion with an average spend of R1 670 
per trip. Holiday tourists had an estimated direct spend of 
R9.9-billion with an average spend of R3 670 per trip. VFR 
tourists spent an average of 3.2 nights during their trip, while 
holiday tourists spent an average of 3.1 nights. 

In previous years (pre-pandemic), the number of domestic 
trips declined during the period of 2016 to 2018. However, 
2019 saw a significant increase in domestic trips into and 
around KZN. Receipts generated from domestic trips over 
the same period, however, increased by 77.7% to a high 
of R8.0 billion. This all changed drastically in 2020 when 
the world was hit by the unprecedented impacts of the 
COVID-19 pandemic.

Figure(s) 12: Domestic trips – Number, 2017-2020
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*2020 = Data available for Jan-Sep only.

In previous years, there were two main challenges hindering 
domestic tourism growth:
1. A"ordability – “Not being able to a"ord it” is the major 

reason given for not taking a domestic trip. Increases in 
the price of petrol further exacerbate this problem;

2. Relevant experiences - South African travel trade and 
tourism product owners do not see the value of the 
African and domestic tourist, and therefore do not o"er 
packages or experiences that meet that market’s needs. 

Despite this, Tourism Decision Metrics (TDM), the 
forecasting tool developed by Oxford Economics and used 
by SAT, forecasts 4.3 million domestic holiday trips by 
2030. The United Nations World Tourism Organization 
(UNWTO) and the World Travel &Tourism Council (WTTC) 
have also published a number of reports that outline the 
impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on the global tourism 
sector as well as updated forecasted scenarios for tourism 
recovery. The most recent, and up to date, forecasts have 
been published by the UNWTO. 

Based on current trends, the UNWTO expects international 
tourist arrivals to be down about 85% in the first quarter of 
2021 over the same period of 2019. This would represent 
a loss of some 260 million international arrivals when 
compared to pre-pandemic levels. The UNWTO has outlined 
two scenarios for 2021, which consider a possible rebound in 
international travel in the second half of the year. These are 
based on a number of factors, most notably a major lifting of 
travel restrictions, the success of vaccination programmes or 
the introduction of harmonized protocols such as the Digital 
Green Certificate planned by the European Commission.  

• The first scenario points to a rebound in July, which 
would result in a 66% increase in international arrivals 
for the year 2021 compared to the historic lows of 
2020. In this case, arrivals would still be 55% below 
the levels recorded in 2019. 

• The second scenario considers a potential rebound 
in September, leading to a 22% increase in arrivals 
compared to last year. Still, this would be 67% below 
the levels of 2019.

• However, in 2020, the main challenges that were 
hindering domestic tourism growth are COVID-19 
lockdown restrictions, “No reasons to travel”, 
“Financial reasons” (likely - no income or disposable 
income for travel) and “Time constraints”. 
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KWAZULU!NATAL 
PROVINCIAL  
TOURISM ENVIRONMENT
The table below provides a summary of tourism performance 
in KwaZulu-Natal over the period 2014-2019. 

NOTE: The selected measures are aimed at providing an 
understanding of tourism performance at a provincial level, and are 
aligned with the indicators used by the United Nations World Tourism 
Organisation (UNWTO) and the World Travel and Tourism Council 
(WTTC), as well as other organisations, such as the Travel and Tourism 
Research Association. 
The measures are also in line with what is measured by the South 
African National Tourism Sector Strategy and the KZN Tourism 
Master Plan. Data is sourced from a variety of organisations in order 
to provide a detailed picture of the state of the tourism economy in 
KwaZulu-Natal.

The performance trends include:  
1. The overall domestic trips trend reflects a significant 

decline from the high of 5.2 million trips in 2014.  
However, there has been a year-on-year increase since 
2017, as indicated in the table below.

Year Number of Trips

2017 2 796 000

2018 2 923 900

2018 6 198 264

Figure 13 - Domestic Trips - KZN

2. Domestic spend per trip has increased significantly to 
R3070 per trip. remained relatively flat at ±R1 100 per 
person since 2015, and foreign spend per person per 
trip has reduced from just under R8 000 per person 
per trip in 2019 to R 6 969 for the first nine months of 
2020.

3. KZN hotel occupancy in 2020 declined significantly to 
40.9% from 65.8% in 2019. 

4. While air passenger movements have also declined in 
2020 by 57% compared to 2019. 

Some noteworthy current global trends include:
In light of the COVID-19 pandemic, a number of new 
tourism trends have emerged that are influenced by the 
way tourists approach travel in the “new normal”. These 
trends are constantly evolving and changing. There are also 
a number of di"erent opinions and assumptions that have 
been made on these trends. In general, the most common 
trends include the following:
1. Budget travel – people are eager to travel but have less 

disposable income to do so 
2. Staycations – people are working remotely in new  

destinations and they are taking more day trips
3. Family travel – people are spending more time with 

loved ones after being separated in lockdown
4. Safer travel – people are more cautious and are wary of 

safety protocols, such as social distancing
5. Last-minute bookings – people are making more  

spontaneous bookings due to lockdown regulations

 
KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Product Development and 
Investment Promotion:
Tourism product development is mainly driven by the 
private sector, with some e"orts by national, provincial 
and local governments, though these have been largely 
unsuccessful. There are a number of rural and township areas 
within the Province that have the potential to be turned 
into tourism destinations, but many of these are not being 
developed. Such areas present opportunities to develop 
new and di"erent tourism products to address the changing 
requirements of the market – hence the need to also 
recognise rural and township tourism as an element or part 
of the niche-product development. 

Poor quality, poor management and the lack of maintenance 
of cultural and heritage attractions often detract from 
visitors’ experience, and damage the image of the KZN 
destination. There is a need to develop products and 
experiences that would improve and expand the current 
o"erings, utilise new high-potential tourism areas, and meet 
domestic and foreign market needs.
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OFFICE OF 
THE CEO 

Purpose
To provide strategic leadership in the development and 
promotion of tourism for the province, create an enabling 
environment for tourism stakeholders, as well as champion 
TKZN’s strategy development with overall responsibility for 
strategic planning and organisational accountability.

Strategic Objective
Strategic leadership in destination marketing and good 
governance 

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
In Progress 

Linking Performance with Budget

Programme 2019/20 2020/21

O!ce of the CEO Budget Actual Expenditure Variance Budget Actual Expenditure Variance

8 714 8 833 (119) 10 471 9 586 885

Total 9 028 8 833 (119) 10 471 9 586 885

Outputs Output Indicators Annual Target
 (APP) 2020/21 

Actual 
Performance Variance Comments

To achieve an unqualified audit 
finding

Clean audit findings 
of performance and 
financial information

1 1 0
Achieved

Number of reports 
on the performance 
of coordination 
structures 9 20 +11

Overachievement is 
due to the numbers of 
unplanned partnerships 
and engagements to ensure 
sustainability of tourism 
industries in KZN

To manage stakeholder 
relations

Number of 
stakeholder 
engagements to 
provide feedback on 
the performance and 
trends in the tourism 
sector

16 19 +3

At the start of the 
COVID-19 lockdown 
regulations, the entity 
saw the reason to conduct 
online workshops to provide 
support the tourism 
industries and to ensure 
marketing of the province 
during the epidemic.
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PROGRAMME 2: 
PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
TOURISM DEVELOPMENT 

Purpose
To be the custodian of knowledge management 
to inform KZN’s tourism strategies and plans and 
to facilitate tourism information provision and 
dissemination.

Strategic Objectives
• Inform TKZN's marketing approach through 

tourism intelligence provision. 
• Be the custodian of knowledge management for 

destination promotion.

Key Performance Areas 
• Research, information and knowledge 

management
• Information o!ce and distribution services
• Information and Communication Technology

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
The Tourism Information Services unit provides a stable 
technology platform, combined with market-driven research 
and knowledge. Our research findings are packaged into 
information products and are made available through 
national and global distribution points. 

Providing tourists with information empowers them to 
make informed travel decisions – this is critical for tourism 
to succeed. Our research guides local and international 
decision-makers who devise strategies and tactics to sustain 
and grow tourism. 

Research 
The Tourism Information Service’s Research Unit plays a 
critical role in the improvement of TKZN Tourism’s service 
o"erings. 

The research unit provides tourism intelligence to the 
organisation and tourism stakeholders which includes 
tracking market trends to inform the destination’s marketing 
focus domestically, regionally and internationally. This has 
provided TKZN as well as stakeholders the opportunity to 
implement strategies informed by market insights. 

During the 2020/21 period, the unit undertook a number of 
research projects, including tracking hotel occupancy trends 
in KwaZulu-Natal as the country entered into lockdown in 
response to the e"ects of COVID-19. 

Research reports included the Brand Tracker Study, 
Omnibus-Domestic Tourism Report, Annual Statistics 
Report and the Impact of COVID-19 Report. During 2020, 
adhoc surveys were conducted to determine the impact of 
COVID-19 regulations. The research unit also produced a 
weekly, monthly and quarterly Tourism Performance Report 
on the latest information relating to the tourism sector 
globally.

In addition, the research unit completed a strategy 
document which outlined the path that would be taken over 
the next five years. 

Tourism Information O"ces
The department provides information services to domestic 
and global markets. This task is supported by the distribution 
of information to embassies, consulates, conferences, 
municipalities and various national points according to an 
annual distribution plan. During the 2020/21 year, physical 
distribution at national and international platforms was 
a"ected by the COVID-19 pandemic. However, the physical 
distribution at national platforms resumed when conditions 
permitted.

During the national lockdown, the Tourism Information 
O!ce was required to adapt to the stakeholder support role. 
The unit embraced this role, putting the needs of the tourist 
first and continues to operate in this manner going forward. 
This included assisting tourists who were still in the province 
during level 5 lockdown and needed to be repatriated to 
their respective countries.

The performance statistics for Tourism KZN for the 
2020/21 period showed that in total 2 394 queries were 
responded to by means of email, fax, and walk-ins. The 
unit distributed 11 782 marketing brochures nationally. 
The national lockdown contributed towards the decrease 
compared to the corresponding previous period.

INFORMATION AND  
COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY
Consumer Facing Technologies 
The use of technology plays a key role in the execution of 
Tourism KZN’s mandate. The website, Mobile App and our 
partners’ online booking systems ensure that information 
about tourism destinations is easily accessible and easy to 
disseminate. 
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ICT played a pivotal role in the year under review as the lockdown necessitated that the organisation largely worked 
remotely, processed documents electronically, held virtual meetings, as well as communicated to stakeholders and 
consumers digitally. The presence of a strong ICT team and systems ensured that Tourism KZN was able to continue with its 
operations e!ciently.

In total 245 891 new users visited the entity’s website and gained access to key tourism information during the 2020/21 
period. 

Although the website has a wide international audience, most of the people who accessed it were from South Africa, the 
United States, United Kingdom, India and Nigeria. Most of the tra!c was directed to the website by search engines. Website 
visitors were most interested in information about “accommodation”, “things to do” and “events’’. The top three social media 
channels that directed tra!c to the website were Facebook, YouTube and Twitter.

Smart Mobile devices far surpass traditional laptops and desktops computers. A mobile application - The Tourism KZN Travel 
Guide - was distributed to 1 429 new mobile devices during the 2020/21 period. 

The website and mobile app are backed by a Product Management Database which forms a key part of the Destination 
Management System and was updated with new products and services during this reporting period. This included the network 
of websites, which makes up the Destination Management System.

Digital Tra!c showed an overall decline due to the COVID-19 restrictions that were enforced.

Linking Performance with Budget

Programme 2019/20 2020/21
Tourism Information 
Services Budget Actual Expenditure Variance Budget Actual Expenditure Variance

21 490 18 462 3 028 22 370 18 729 3 641

Total 21 490 18 462 3 028 22 370 18 729 3 641

Outputs Output Indicators 
Annual Target

 (APP) 
2020/21 

Actual 
Performance Variance Comments

5-year Research  
Strategic Plan 

Number of 
Research Strategic 
plans produces 

1 1 0
Achieved 

Produce research 
reports in support 
of TKZN’s strategic 
objectives

Number of 
Research reports 
produced 9 9 0

Achieved

Increase Tourism  
information  
dissemination

Increase in tourism 
information 
dissemination by 2 
percent

647 013 261 493 -385 520

The COVID-19 epidemic 
South African lockdown 
regulations limited the entity 
to perform as planned in 
the year under review. Due 
to closure of information 
o!ces and limited movement 
of tourists/visitors during 
the quarter under review. 
Majority of information 
distribution utilised digital 
platforms such as website and 
mobile app.
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PROGRAMME 3: 
PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
TOURISM DEVELOPMENT 

• 
        

Purpose 
To facilitate tourism product development, the 
enhancement of experience o"erings and contributing 
to tourism sector transformation.

Strategic Objectives 
• Enhanced visitor experience and quality tourism 

products
• Increased participation of black-owned small 

enterprises in the tourism sector in KwaZulu-
Natal 

Key Performance Areas 
• Business plans developed in support of existing 

and new tourism product
• Tourism investment promotion activities 

facilitated
• New tourism experience o"erings facilitated
• Completed tourism products facilitated
• Interventions facilitated in support of small 

black-owned tourism enterprises
• Emerging black-owned tourism enterprises 

supported
• Black-owned tourism enterprises benefited from 

tourism relief fund
• Growth of small tourism enterprises

PERFORMANCE  
HIGHLIGHTS
The COVID-19 pandemic that halted tourism activities 
necessitated a shift in developmental focus for the year 
under review. Instead of investing in developing new tourism 
products that would not be immediately utilised, emphasis 
was placed largely on assisting tourism businesses who 
had su"ered losses due to the pandemic in their recovery 
process. 

TKZN launched a series of online workshops addressing 
various topical issues to capacitate and equip small tourism 
enterprises with information, knowledge and tools necessary 
to function in a COVID-19 environment. These capacity 
building workshops were focused on business recovery 
strategies, funding solutions, application of tourism 
industry protocols and digital marketing. At least 147 small 
tourism enterprises participated and benefited from these 
interventions.

Market access platforms were also facilitated to assist 
tourism enterprises to showcase their products to various 
markets and potential buyers. Working in partnership with 
Southern Africa Tourism Service Associations (SATSA), nine 
small tourism operators exhibited their o"erings to tourism 
buyers that participated in the three Virtual Familiarisation 
Tours. In addition to this, another market access opportunity 
was facilitated in which 75 KZN small tourism enterprises 
participated as exhibitors in the Africa Travel Week platform 
organised by World Travel Market (WTM) Africa.

A partnership with Airbnb was formed to ensure that 
communities situated close to tourism attractions in the 
province benefitted from tourism by providing homestays. 
Additional clusters of homestays and experiences will be 
identified in communities in KwaZulu-Natal. The focus of 
the programme will be on women and youth, enabling them 
to earn a living, develop sustainable enterprises, learn usable 
skills, tell their local stories, and improve their quality of life.

TKZN had to move swiftly to initiate a provincial tourism 
relief fund to ensure the survival of distressed small tourism 
business during the pandemic. The guidelines, systems and 
processes were developed and the R20 million programme 
has received 611 applications - 416 from tourism enterprises 
and 195 from tourist guides. At the end of the period 
under review, the applications were undergoing a screening 
process. Since February 2020 the spread of coronavirus 
has had an adverse economic impact on the entire tourism 
industry, damaging many small tourism enterprises severely. 

In addition to these measures, TKZN participated in the 
development of rural tourism experiences that contribute to 
diversifying tourism o"erings in the province. These projects 
include the construction of ablution and picnic facilities at 
kwaXolo Caves Adventures, which will commence in the new 
financial year.
 
Tourism KZN assisted the iSimangaliso Wetland Authority 
by developing a Tourism Master Plan for the iSimangaliso 
Wetland Park, and an investment summit will be held in 
2021/22 to attract investors for the development of the 
globally-renowned World Heritage Site.

The Department of Economic Development, Tourism and 
Environmental A"airs has provided funds for additional 
studies on the Durban Eye Ferris Wheel project. TKZN has 
been appointed to facilitate the design development for the 
project at the new promenade, adjacent to the mouth of 
Durban Harbour. 

In addition to this, TKZN commenced with facilitating 
development of tourism experiences for Umngeni Valley 
Rural Tourism Precinct. The tourism experiences identified 
include birdwatching, adventure, fishing, canoeing, 
biking, camping, team building, picnics and events such as 
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conferencing and Jazz festivals. The interventions required include signage, access roads, tourist guides, connectivity and 
packaging the experiences o"ered. The development of this precinct will contribute to the enhancement of experiences 
o"ered within Inanda Heritage Route.

TKZN organized a virtual Tourism Investment Workshop to raise funds for the development of The Durban Eye Ferris 
Wheel project, Balele Game Reserve in Utrecht, the Amatata Mountain project in Inanda, Yandisa Lodge in Margate, the 
Woodstock Dam Resort project in Bergville and the Umkhomazi Resort and Spa in Impendle. As the year came to a close, 
many investors had shown a keen interest in these projects.

TKZN continues to apply two key principles in the organisation’s product development initiatives, ensuring transformation 
and shifting tourism opportunities into rural areas and townships. These principles will help to unlock the potential of tourism 
by creating employment and livelihoods for communities who were previously marginalised from tourism benefits, while 
adding new products to diversify the extensive product range already o"ered in the Zulu Kingdom.

Linking Performance with Budget

Programme 2019/20 2020/21

Tourism Development Budget Actual Expenditure Variance Budget Actual Expenditure Variance

11 188 7 656 3 532 9 938 5 861 4 077

Total 11 188 7 656 3 532 9 938 5 861 4 077

Outputs Output Indicators 
Annual Target

 (APP) 
2020/21 

Actual 
Performance Variance Comments

Business plans 
developed in 
support of existing 
and new tourism 
product

Number of business 
plans in support of 
existing and new 
tourism product 
developments

1 1 0

Achieved 

Tourism 
investment 
promotion 
activities 
facilitated

Number of tourism 
investment 
promotion activities 
facilitated 4 6 +2

Additional investment 
platform organised by 
external body was used 
to promote KZN tourism 
investment opportunities.

New tourism 
experience 
o#erings 
facilitated

Number of new 
experience o"erings 
facilitated 2 2 0

Achieved.

Completed 
tourism products 
facilitated

Cumulative number 
of completed 
tourism product 
developments 
facilitated

1 0 -1

Discrepancies in the 
Procurement process were 
noted this led to the project 
halted. Procurement process 
to be restarted.

Interventions 
facilitated in 
support of 
small black 
owned tourism 
enterprises

Number of 
interventions 
implemented in 
support of small 
black tourism 
enterprises

12 13 +1

The WTM Africa was 
conducted and was seen as of 
great value for KZN tourism 
enterprises.
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Emerging black-
owned tourism 
enterprises 
supported

Number of enterprises 
benefiting from 
TKZN enterprise 
development support 
programme

150 381 +231

The enterprise support was open 
for every tourism enterprise 
requiring support because of 
COVID-19 impacts.

Black-owned 
tourism enterprises 
benefited from 
tourism relief fund 

Number of black-
owned enterprises 
benefiting from 
TKZN enterprise 
development support 
programme

190 0 -190

Approval for the rollout of relief 
fund occurred towards the end 
of financial year (March 2021). 
Late approval of the tourism 
relief fund. Disbursement of the 
relief fund would be done in the 
next Financial year.

Growth of small 
tourism enterprises

Annual percentage 
increase in the 
growth rate of 
black-owned small 
enterprises benefiting 
from enterprise 
development support

2% 0 -2%

There has been general decline 
in revenue generation for all 
tourism enterprises due to 
COVID-19. TKZN is in the 
process of assessing the financial 
statement to determine the 
extent of decline in the growth 
rate of Tourism enterprises.
Roll out the tourism recovery 
programmes.
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PROGRAMME 4: 
PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
MARKETING 

Purpose
The function of the Marketing Department is to 
market and promote KwaZulu-Natal (KZN) as a tourist 
destination nationally and internationally to increase 
tourist arrivals.

Strategic Objectives
• Increase the number of domestic and foreign 

tourists to the province
• Increase the geographic spread, length of stay 

and spend of all visitors
• Improve seasonal arrival patterns
• Penetrate the African region and Asia (China 

and India) 
 
Key Performance Areas

• Drive awareness of the province's diverse o"ering 
to increase tourist arrivals into the province 
(domestic and international) 

• Enhance brand and leisure marketing
• Step change in international marketing 
• Improve trade relations

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
Despite the national lockdown and global travel restrictions, 
which severely impacted tourist arrivals and the overall 
performance of the sector in the period under review, it 
was necessary to continue with marketing and promotional 
initiatives during the pandemic in order to keep the 
destination top-of-mind internationally and to reignite 
domestic arrivals when travel restrictions were eased. To 
this end, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal (TKZN) came up with a 
three-phase marketing recovery strategy in order to respond 
to the devastation that was being cause by the COVID- 19 
pandemic. One of the strategy’s pillars was a hard-hitting 
campaign #KZNhasitall Believe it. The first phase of the 
campaign (Reassure) was about encouraging the public 
not to cancel their travel plans completely, but rather 
postpone them for a later stage when they could travel 
freely. The second phase (Regain) looked at partnering with 
tour operators and others in the tourism trade in creating 
in-your-face messages encouraging intra-provincial travel 
as the ban was lifted on domestic tourism. The final phase 
(Build) saw TKZN continue joint promotions with trade to 
encourage travel into and around the province. All three 
phases were executed mainly on digital platforms and 
resulted in increased engagement on these platforms.

The marketing department continued to promote the Zulu 
Kingdom actively during the year in the destination’s key 
source markets, and ran an intensive domestic marketing 
campaign that ensured that KZN attracted a sizeable portion 
of domestic tourists in the context of highly reduced travel.

Despite the limitations of the pandemic and the inability to 
engage with tourism trade partners face-to-face, marketing 
initiatives were steadily moved onto digital platforms as the 
year progressed, allowing TKZN to continue executing its 
marketing mandate.

Several online platforms and digital channels were used to 
create and maintain awareness of KZN as a destination, to 
engage potential tourists and partner with strategic tourism 
trade and media in order to translate the awareness into 
transactions that would keep the tourism economy alive and 
save as many jobs as possible.

Many marketing initiatives were moved entirely onto digital 
online platforms during the period under review

In addition to distributing communications to stakeholders 
encouraging future travel on digital platforms, direct mailers 
were sent to the trade and placed in travel social media 
platforms. 

A key element of the COVID-19 drive encouraged people 
to remain at home during the pandemic, while reminding 
them of what to look forward to in the Province when travel 
bans were uplifted. 

Destination messaging was flighted at all 12 airports in South 
Africa and on Golf TV, which provides coverage in 60 golf 
clubs in South Africa for a year. Destination messaging 
was also displayed on bus backs in the Western Cape and 
Gauteng.

Printed brochures have been replaced by digital platforms: 
for example, QR codes were distributed at toll gates in the 
province for users to access information on their smart 
phones.

Virtual promotional tours were created in conjunction 
with Southern African Tourism Services Association 
for the tourism trade to sample our destination, before 
selling it on to tourists. These virtual familiarisation trips 
enabled 45 products from the province to showcase their 
accommodation, scenery, activities and food o"erings to 
over 220 buyers from 16 countries around the world. 
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Joint promotions with the tourism trade were placed 
on online platforms so that bookings can resume when 
restrictions are eased. TKZN sourced packages, deals and 
specials from trade partners across the province. These deals 
were loaded on the TKZN website and focused on opening of 
travel in the country. 
  
TKZN conducted destination marketing webinars with over 
1 000 global tour operators and travel agents on KZN’s 
destination o"erings. Roadshows with local trade partners 
were also conducted as online webinars.

Among the key marketing highlights in the year under 
review is a partnership TKZN entered into with booking 
agent Travelstart on a 12-month campaign to encourage 
bookings into the province. 

The campaign generated 50 tourism deals - against a 
target of 10 deals - and increased the number of domestic 
arrivals and spend, while improving the geographic spread 
of tourism. It led to an increase of 74% in flights into the 
province in February 2021, compared to the same month 
in 2020, and a 71% increase in accommodation packages 
booked over the same period.

The economic impact of this campaign amounted to about 
R15 million in accommodation and R37 million in airline 
bookings. This totals R52 million with an overall investment 
of just over R1 million from Tourism KZN, providing a 
massive return on investment of over 1:50.

Other innovative initiatives include an inspirational video 
about KZN that was flighted on several TV channels 
and viewed by over 500 000 social media users, and a 
destination music video featuring local musicians Aewon 
Wolf and Kyle Deutsch. The video was posted on the 
YouTube channel and has had enjoyed over 40 000 views. 
It has been flighted on MTV, which reaches 48.5 million 
African viewers in 10.5 million households in 48 countries in 
Sub-Saharan Africa. The video is also scheduled to flight on 
Channel O.
 
Digital platforms are also being used to take KZN to 
international trade shows. TKZN booked a virtual stand 
within the South African Tourism hub at the International 
Tourismus-Börse (Berlin) travel show. TKZN also 
participated at the Our Africa Travel show, an online trade 
platform that connects Africa and the Indian Ocean Islands 
with the globe.

An emerging trend is the need to build in flexibility in the 
current uncertainty, so that travellers have the option of 
postponing their trips to a later date instead of cancelling 
travel plans. In response to this trend, TKZN created adverts 
that encouraged travellers to stay home during the hard 
lockdown and postpone their travel plans rather than cancel 
completely. The adverts were posted on all TKZN social 
media platforms and this boosted the engagements on the 
social media platforms. 

Having engaged the tourism trade to partner with TKZN 
by submitting packages and specials, the geographic spread 
of tourists was achieved. This is evident in the digitally 
generated reports that were received from trade partners. 
The packages loaded on the TKZN website were from 
di"erent establishments in the province, thereby also 
assisting in the spread of tourists around the province. 

In order to raise awareness and achieve geographic spread, 
TKZN partnered with Airbnb at no cost to either party. 
The partnership targeted Airbnb users and saw to the 
promotion of the whole of KZN to the South African public 
to encourage interprovincial travel. The insights gained from 
Airbnb reports illustrated the geographic spread of tourists 
in the province and these were used to shape the recovery 
campaign.

TKZN partnered with Media24 in order to increase the 
number of visitors into the province. The partnership was 
digital in format and execution. The aim of the partnership 
was to create awareness of destination KZN, encourage 
engagement with the public and ultimately result in 
transactions (bookings). As a result of this campaign, TKZN 
reached over 2.9 million unique users who have an inclination 
to travel. This campaign also assisted TKZN in achieving its 
mandate of ensuring the geographic spread of tourists in the 
province.

As part of the 360-degree awareness campaign run in this 
period, TKZN created adverts and aired these on SABC1 
and Mzansi Magic. Combined, the two channels have a 
viewership of 25 million. The adverts showcased di"erent 
parts of the province thereby making way for the geographic 
spread of tourists. 



39

Part B

Linking Performance with Budget

Programme 2019/20 2020/21

Marketing Budget Actual Expenditure Variance Budget Actual Expenditure Variance

60 208 66 230 (6 022) 32 810 24 469 8 341

Total 60 208 66 230 (6 022) 32 810 24 469 8 341

Outputs Output Indicators 
Annual Target

 (APP) 
2020/21 

Actual 
Performance Variance Comments

Drive awareness of 
KZN 

Percentage (%) top 
of mind Awareness

40% 65%  +25% 

Aggressive marketing 
strategy to ensure top of 
mind awareness of the 
province.

Percentage (%) of 
total destination 
awareness 78% 100% +22% 

Aggressive marketing 
strategy to ensure 
destination awareness of the 
province.

Drive competitiveness 
through the number 
of engagements with 
trade and media

Number of trade 
engagements 
for destination 
promotion

8 26 +18

Through an opportunity 
by SAT, TKZN conduct 
destination training to 
their Hub Heads and global 
trade. The purpose of the 
presentation to profile 
the destination, show that 
KZN is ready to receive 
international tourists and 
that establishments do 
adhere to COVID-19 
protocols.

Training was through the 
engagement done with the 
UK, India, Indonesia and 
Asia Pacific.

Create partnerships 
for destination 
promotion

Number of 
partnerships created 
to drive conversion 2 4 +2

Overachievement was 
noted in quarter two where 
opportunities availed by 
GMAs to widely promote 
the province.

Number of tourism 
deals generated

40 165 +125

Overachievement is seen 
in Quarter 2 and in the last 
quarter for the fiscal. 
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PROGRAMME 5: 
PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
DURBAN KWAZULU!NATAL  
CONVENTION BUREAU

Purpose 
To aggressively identify and bid for small, medium and 
large meeting, exhibition and incentive gatherings with 
researched potential of significant return on investment 
and raise the level of awareness of Durban and KwaZulu-
Natal’s wide range of business tourism-related venues 
and associated services.

Strategic Objectives
• To increase the level of business tourism flow 

to the city of Durban and other parts of the 
province of KZN;

• To secure both private and public sector support 
to enable initiatives to increase the level of 
business tourism to this region;

• To identify and promote business tourism venues 
and related services in Durban and the province 
of KZN; and 

• To stimulate an awareness of the benefits and 
opportunities, which exist in the business tourism 
sub-sector, particularly among the emerging 
business tourism community in Durban and 
KwaZulu-Natal.

Key Performance Areas 
• Number of bid proposals prepared.
• Comprehensive data set and understanding of 

KZN’s business event venues and services.

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
The national COVID-19 lockdown had a big impact on all 
the Convention Bureau’s activities over the period under 
review. 
Under normal circumstances, business events produce 
significant direct economic benefits for the province through 
their logistics, and many indirect benefits through the 
additional tourism activities that delegates enjoy before, 
during and after the event, whilst raising the profile of the 
destination. 

The converse also applies: the downturn in events has had 
a negative e"ect on the overall performance of tourism 
globally, in South Africa, and in our province, and more so on 
business events.

The prohibition of large gatherings due to the COVID-19 
pandemic was a necessary measure to keep people safe from 
the coronavirus. But it hit the business events sub-sector so 
hard throughout the world, as international travel was halted, 
local travel severely restricted in many cases and large 
gatherings were prohibited.

Many global associations and event owners who were not 
able to host events during the year under review in KwaZulu-
Natal, postponed the events to a time when it will be 
permissible to once again hold events safely.

There is no certainty over exactly when the pandemic will 
be brought under su!cient control for the business events 
industry to resume holding events with no risk to delegates, 
organisers or suppliers. Despite these challenges, the 
Convention Bureau was able to secure the hosting of the 
United Nations International / Global Child Labour Congress 
in May 2022, the World Table Tennis Championships in 
2023 and the rights to host the International Conference of 
AIDS and STIs in Africa in December 2020 in Durban.

Last year, KZN in partnership with Junior Chamber 
International (JCI) hosted the JCI Conference on 27 – 29 
November 2020 at the Durban ICC. The Convention 
Bureau capitalised on the relaxed government regulations 
under Level 1 to host this event within strict government 
guidelines and COVID-19 safety protocols. The economic 
benefits and the ROI exceeded the investment by the 
province, and over and above that, the non-economic 
benefits such as skills transfer, profiling of the destination, 
research, job opportunities etc. exceeded the expectations. 

Other partnerships included hosting the Forbes Woman 
Africa Leading Women Summit & Awards in March and 
the International Conference on Information Technology & 
Society (ICTAS), which were hosted virtually. The Province 
was able to utilise these events as a marketing tool to keep 
destination Durban and KwaZulu-Natal top-of-mind as a 
business events destination and received maximum exposure 
as the business events destination of choice for international 
associations and event owners beyond COVID-19. 

During the year under review and as a result of the e"ects 
of COVID-19, the Convention Bureau was unable to 
send SMEs in the business events sector to domestic 
and international platforms to showcase and market 
their products/services and to interact with buyers and 
event owners, as in previous years. However, a significant 
intervention was the partnership with the International 
Association of Professional Conference Organisers 
(IAPCO), to train and certify 25 SMEs who received 
international training as Professional Conference Organisers 
(POCs). This intervention was of particular importance 
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to drive transformation and ensure black owned businesses benefited from the business events value chain. The fact that 
the SMEs (participants) can hold a credible accreditation is key to ensuring that the Convention Bureau continues to drive 
transformation as they have been mandated to do. IAPCO has been a great partner in providing this training in a more  
cost-e"ective way than what it would normally cost to attend the training internationally. 

The Convention Bureau also participated in the International Congress and Convention Association (ICCA) 2020 Virtual 
Congress, which brought ICCA Members, Association Executives and meeting planners from all over the world together to 
share knowledge about bidding, designing, organising and promoting international association meetings.

The Convention Bureau is encouraged that engagements it began with African Export Import Bank (Afreximbank) in 2018 
have led to massive benefits for KwaZulu-Natal. The bank stimulates the expansion and diversification of African trade to 
increase Africa’s share of global trade. The Bureau made a successful bid to host Afreximbank’s Trade Finance Seminar in 
2019. Following this, the President of Afreximbank and the Premier of KZN have been discussing investment opportunities 
in the Province, leading to the announcement of over R50-billion investment by Afreximbank in KwaZulu-Natal. 

This partnership and others previously entered into are testament that when the CB hosts the events/conferences, there is a 
high possibility of tangible legacies and value beyond hosting business events in the Zulu Kingdom. 

The scientific, cultural and educational value of these events contributes to the development of delegates, upliftment of their 
sectors, and brings tangible benefits to communities.

Linking Performance with Budget

Programme 2019/20 2020/21

Convention Bureau Budget Actual Expenditure Variance Budget Actual Expenditure Variance

37 225 33 847 3 378 9 119 5 147 3 972

Total 37 225 33 847 3 378 9 119 5 147 3 972

Outputs Output Indicators 
Annual Target

 (APP) 
2020/21 

Actual 
Performance Variance Comments

Increase business 
events it the province

Number of bids 
proposal submitted

35 46 +11

Aggressive marketing 
opportunity for KZN as the 
host destination.

Number of black 
owned SMME 
mentorship 
interventions

Number of strategic 
interventions given 
to black owned 
small enterprises in 
business events

5 1 -4

Due to COVID-19 and 
lockdown regulations which 
posed restriction on travel 
and gatherings, the CB was 
only able to conduct ONE 
training with IAPCO. 

*important to note that, when the entity revised the APP and AOP targets due to COVID-19, it was indicated that the CB 
will only be able to conduct IAPCO training only in quarter 4. 
**1 Targeted Training for the Business tourism trade through International Association of Conference Organizers (IAPCO)
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PROGRAMME 6: 
PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
PUBLIC RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS

Purpose 
To undertake internal and external programmes to 
build a positive reputation for the destination and 
TKZN among stakeholders. Further, to champion 
service excellence in the tourism industry and, through 
the activities of the organisation, to leverage media 
opportunities for both the destination and TKZN.

Strategic Objectives 
To improve destination and corporate image, manage 
stakeholder relationships and promote service 
excellence within the tourism sector. 

Key Performance Areas 
• Proactive media relations and the building of a 

positive image of the destination
• Continuous communication of organisational key 

engagements and achievements with internal and 
external stakeholders    

• Identify leveraging opportunities with supported 
events and co-ordination of supported events

• Implement an extensive tourism safety and 
awareness programme

• Champion improved customer care and service 
excellence within the sector

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
The COVID-19 crisis called for robust, innovative 
internal and external communications to keep TKZN 
sta" and tourism stakeholders abreast of rapidly changing 
developments in the tourism sector. 

Members of sta" received regular updates regarding the 
national lockdown and the regulations a"ecting the tourism 
sector on digital platforms, as well as the organisation’s and 
tourism sector’s response to the pandemic.

As COVID-19 took hold, it became necessary to rationalise 
and streamline all TKZN’s communication activities, creating 
greater e!ciencies while improving coverage in the media 
and exposure on social media.

TKZN worked closely with the media to inform them about 
the initiatives driven by the entity to manage the impact of 
the pandemic. 

Members of the media were invited to join tourism webinars 
conducted by the national Minister of Tourism, the 
provincial MEC of Economic Development, Tourism and 
Environmental A"airs and tourism operators.

During the year under review numerous media statements 
were produced and distributed to the media on the 
interventions driven by the entity, leading to a surge 
of exposure and publicity for the destination. Media 
partnerships were forged with Expresso on SABC 3, 
Gagasi FM, Kaya KM, IOL, DSTV Supersport, Channel O, 
The Morning Show on eTV, Ukhozi FM and The Citizen, 
extending the reach of the message to a massive national 
audience with all of our partners’ online platforms being 
utilised.

TKZN expresses its appreciation to the media houses 
who made this possible, and thanks all members of media 
for supporting our e"orts to deal with the impact of the 
COVID-19 pandemic. 

The organisation used its various social media platforms 
including Facebook, Twitter, Instagram and YouTube to 
promote Destination KZN. These included videos and 
content to keep KZN top of mind during the various national 
lockdown alert levels. TKZN’s inspirational video was shared 
on several online social media platforms and on YouTube.

The PR and Communications Unit created and managed the 
My KZN Facebook page and shared content to ensure that 
members keep KZN at the top of their travel bucket list as 
soon as leisure travel opened.

TKZN embarked on aggressive social media campaigns which 
have grown the entity’s social media footprint and opened 
access to new audiences who are keen on receiving travel 
content.

When the KZN Tourism Relief Fund was introduced at the 
end of the year under review, a widespread communication 
drive was launched to encourage KZN-based tourism 
businesses to apply. 

Promotional materials were designed to raise awareness 
about the fund and was shared publicly using social media 
and conventional media platforms, targeting tourism 
enterprises and tourist guides in the province. TKZN 
facilitated two webinars to guide potential applicants.

Presentations on the Tourism Relief Fund were also made 
to the Tourism Master Plan Stakeholders Forum and to the 
Provincial Tourism Forum.
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Tourism KZN coordinated media interviews on the Tourism 
Relief Fund, the Kwande Festival and the Easter Season 
on behalf of the Department of Economic Development, 
Tourism and Environmental A"airs. This resulted in media 
coverage on SABC TV, SABC Radio, KayaFM, Gagasi FM, 
The Witness, Ilanga Newspapers, Tourism Update, South 
Coast Herald, Vuma FM, among others. 

The announcement of the Tourism Equity Fund by the 
National Department of Tourism in partnership with Sefa 
was also widely communicated to stakeholders. Digital 
platforms such as the TKZN Facebook page and WhatsApp 
groups were used to channel all communications.

Several PR and Communication activities were conducted 
to keep KZN’s signature events that could not be hosted, 
top of mind for consumers. One of these was the Virtual 
Vodacom Durban July, where TKZN participated in a  
ten-day social media destination marketing campaign on the 
Gold Circle and O!cial VDJ social media pages, including 
a competition to win an all-expenses paid trip to KZN. Due 
to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Durban July took place 
as a “Broadcast-Only” event under strict health and safety 
protocols. Tourism KZN partnered with Gold Circle to 
leverage media opportunities and promote Destination KZN. 

During the 2020 Festive Season TKZN partnered with 
Vida Fiesta on various activations to further promote the 
province. This included hosting an Adventure Breakfast and 
hiking activation at Giba Gorge Adventure Park.
The main message was to drive the staycation message with 
the people of KZN, by encouraging them to stay in KZN and 
explore their own province during the festive season. 
A Golf and Adventure day started with an early morning 
tour of the boardwalks at Dlinza Forest and was followed by 
the Birds and Butterfly tour at the Butterfly Dome while 
golfers swung their clubs at Eshowe Hills Eco Estate and 
Golf Course. This activation emphasized the “Things to do in 
KZN” campaign and highlighted the many activities available 
to tourists in the uMlalazi Municipality.

The organisation also worked in partnership with the KZN 
Department of Sports and Recreation, KZN Gaming 
& Betting Authority and Ithala Development Finance 
Corporation (IDFC) to unveil the Dundee July Legacy 
Project at the Dundee Race Track. Public and private 
sector stakeholders collaborated to unleash the economic 
development potential of the traditional horse racing value 
chain.

TKZN hosted award-winning musician Zakes Bantwini as 
part of his “Music Everywhere Special”. TKZN arranged 

adventure activities in the South and North Coast for the 
musician and his band that was recorded for Home Ground, 
a Sports and Lifestyle Show on DSTV.
Celebrity hostings and partnerships led to a massive social 
media following. 

Tourism KZN partnered with several TV personalities and 
musicians to promote Destination KZN as the must visit 
destination for the domestic travel market. TV personalities 
Siv Ngesi, Jonathan Boynton Lee, Sihle Ndaba and 
musicians Kyle Duetch and Aewon Wolf were hosted in 
various destinations such as the North Coast, Tala Game 
Reserve, Hluhluwe and St. Lucia.

During the hosting programme, they shared their 
experiences in the province with their social media followers. 
This allowed TKZN to connect with an audience of 2 million 
followers who followed the #KZNHasItAll to find out which 
spots the celebrities were visiting each week and what 
activities they ventured on.

In the period under review, TKZN used its various social 
media platforms including Facebook, Twitter, Instagram and 
YouTube to promote Destination KZN and various initiatives 
undertaken by the Authority.

Tourism KZN partnered with Channel O for destination 
marketing during the Fact Durban Rocks Virtual Showcase. 
This presented an opportunity to air the KZN Inspirational 
Video during the two-day broadcast of the show, including 
the destination logo.

Fact Durban Rocks had an average viewership of 318 251 
on 25 July, the highest viewership on the channel on the 
day. The show was the highest trending show on Twitter 
during the broadcast. Presenters were scripted to promote 
Destination KZN during the show.

The Marketing department ran a global digital campaign 
through flighting the inspirational video through these 
platforms. This campaign targeted consumers in the UK,  
US, Germany, France, Netherlands, China and India. 
When intra- and inter-provincial travel resumed, TKZN 
embarked on an extensive digital drive to communicate 
specials to encourage travel to the destination. 

TKZN utilized its own digital platforms as well as partner 
platforms to push this messaging, ensuring that it reached 
700 000 consumers across the platforms the team utilized. 
This drive was supported by an extensive PR drive, which 
ensured reach for the packages the team was driving. 
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These public relations initiatives garnered massive coverage in the media, attaining a total media and social media value of 
over R429 million over the year. This achievement was particularly noteworthy as it came amid budget cuts as tourism 
ground to a halt. 

The exposure and publicity attained over the year is expected to stimulate tourism in KwaZulu-Natal in the future and  
re-ignite the significant contribution the sector makes to the provincial economy as soon as COVID-19 restrictions are 
lifted.

Linking Performance with Budget

Programme 2019/20 2020/21
Public Relations and 
Communications Budget Actual Expenditure Variance Budget Actual Expenditure Variance

23 458 27 679 (4 221) 19 838 12 522 7 316

Total 23 458 27 679 (4 221) 19 838 12 522 7 316

Outputs Output Indicators 
Annual Target

 (APP) 
2020/21 

Actual 
Performance Variance Comments

Increase rand 
value on media 
coverage received 
about the 
destination

Drive positive 
media coverage for 
destination KZN 
despite the impact of 
COVID19

R80 000 
000.00

R429 154 
682.78

+R349 154 
672.78

The entity used all 
opportunities available to 
display the destination for 
positive impact.

Implement 
proactive seasonal 
media campaigns

Number of seasonal 
media engagements 
implemented

2 9 +7

Ensure aggressive media 
coverage for the province.

Implement a KZN 
destination brand 
loyalty campaign 
(value for money, 
safety security 
& welcoming 
destination).

Number activities 
implemented to 
drive destination 
brand loyalty

16 20 +4

TKZN put together a media 
statement announcing the 
KZN Relief Fund to assist 
KZN Tourism Entrepreneurs 
giving financial relief during 
the Covid19 crisis.
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PROGRAMME 7: 
PERFORMANCE INFORMATION 
CORPORATE SERVICES 

Purpose 
To provide an enabling environment for all departments 
within TKZN to carry out their strategic objectives and 
fulfil the organisation’s mandate.

Strategic Objectives 
• To provide skills development and training;
• To implement an e!cient, e"ective, economic 

and transparent supply chain management 
system by managing supply chain turn-around 
time and compliance with relevant prescripts; 
and 

• To adhere to good internal controls and the 
preparation of accurate, reliable and timely 
financial reports.

Key Performance Areas 
• Conduct skills analysis;
• Submission of workplace skills plan;
• Turn-around time for bids and quotations;
• Compilation and submission of AFS;
• Completion and presentation of management 

accounts; and 
• Submission of statutory returns.

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
Tourism KwaZulu-Natal values its people above all else. It 
is the skills and knowledge of the people at the centre of 
tourism, together with their commitment to performance 
excellence, that brings the entity’s strategies and 
programmes to life.

TKZN acknowledges the dedication of all sta" who endured 
the challenges of an extremely di!cult year, and prevailed 
in our quest to develop, grow and transform tourism in the 
province.

EMPLOYEE WELNESS
Several employee wellness sessions were held in the 
period under review. Online presentations provided the 
organisation’s sta" with information about services available 
to employees and o"erings linked to the COVID-19 
pandemic.

The Human Resources business unit coordinated an online 
presentation for sta" to celebrate Women’s Month.

An awareness session was also held on Gender-Based 
Violence, providing an overview of what can be done to 
prevent abuse.  

In addition, a session provided insight into understanding and 
coping with trauma, which became increasingly important as 
the year unfolded and the pandemic took its toll on families.

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
The annual Workskills Plan was timeously submitted to 
CATHSSETA on the 30 April 2020.

Some training interventions were put on hold at the start 
of the reporting period pending the lifting of the national 
lockdown. 

Training initiatives undertaken later in the year included 
one on customer care and how to analyse market research 
data. Sessions on IT Governance and Ethics were also held, 
reinforcing Tourism KZN’s commitment to equip employees 
with all the information and training they need to abide by 
the highest level of ethical conduct at all times.

With an increasing number of the organisation’s services 
migrating to digital platforms during the pandemic, training 
included how to use digital technology for tenders and ways 
to maintain Cyber Security.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
The Supply Chain Management business unit continued 
to administer bids, manage contracts and provide support 
services to all functions in respect of procurement. 

All contracts are constantly monitored and timelines 
managed to avoid service disruptions as they come to an 
end. 

At the start of the year under review, bids could not be 
advertised due to a directive that was issued by National 
Treasury under the Disaster Management Act 2002 (Act 
57 of 2002. The Tourism Sector was closed and only opened 
partially under Alert Level 2 (August 2020) and fully under 
Alert Level 1 (September 2020). 

Over the year, the entity processed 590 quotations, issued 
eight bids and advertised eight tenders. 

The ring-fenced percentage of procurement spend with 
Previously Disadvantaged Individuals over the reporting 
period was 65% for Black ownership against a target of 65%. 
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INTERNAL AND FINANCIAL CONTROL
The submission of the final 2020/21 Annual Performance Plan (APP) was delayed as a result of budget revisions, leading to 
delays in the signing of Performance Agreements for the 2020/21 financial year.

All statutory returns VAT, UIF and employment tax were submitted timeously in the period under review.

The approved organisational budget for 2020/21 was captured on the SAP system and was monitored continuously through 
the year.

Monthly reconciliations, which are done manually and are not done on the SAP system, could not be concluded during 
March and April due to the pandemic.

Reconciliations continued after the lockdown to ensure the accuracy of financial statements and management accounts.

The Finance business unit continued to ensure that service providers were paid within 30 days of receipt of invoices even 
with the sta" working under COVID-19 conditions. 

Linking Performance with Budget

Programme 2019/20 2020/21

Corporate Services Budget Actual Expenditure Variance Budget Actual Expenditure Variance

24 113 26 484 (2 371) 24 484 27 666 3 182

Total 24 113 26 484 (2 371) 24 484 27 666 3 182

Outputs Output Indicators 
Annual 
Target
 (APP) 

2020/21 

Actual 
Performance Variance Comments

Performance 
agreement and 
assessments conducted 

Percentage of 
signed Performance 
Agreements. 100% 98.3% -0.17%

One Performance agreement is 
outstanding. 

Percentage of 
signed Performance 
Assessments. 100% 96.5% -0.35%

The assessment for the Acting 
CEO is signed after the auditing 
of Annual Report.

Sound labour relations 
and employees wellness

Number of training 
interventions 
conducted as per the 
annual Workplace Skills 
Plan.

12 14 +2

The Provincial Treasury 
department provided the 
entity with the Supply Chain 
Management training. This 
increased the planned targets 
to 14.

Procurement  
spend on B-BBEE 
(Black, women, youth,  
PwD’s, MV’s)

Percentage of 
procurement budget 
ring fenced for PDIs 
through competitive 
bidding to contribute 
to transformation.

65% 65% 0

Nil
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Billed as the 
continent’s largest 
travel trade show,
Africa's Travel Indaba attracts industry
heavyweights from across the globe.
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INTRODUCTION 
Adherence to the guiding principles of good corporate 
governance is imperative to Tourism KwaZulu-Natal. The 
implementation of good governance is unquestionably 
fundamental to the way in which our organisation conducts 
its operations. In addition to legislative requirements based 
on a public entity’s enabling legislation, and the Companies 
Act, corporate governance with regard to public entities 
is applied through the precepts of the Public Finance 
Management Act (PFMA) and run in tandem with the 
principles contained in the King’s Report on Corporate 
Governance. 

EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY
The KwaZulu-Natal legislature, the Executive and the 
Accounting Authority of the public entity are responsible for 
corporate governance. In this regard, the Board submitted 
Performance information reports to the Executive Authority 
on a quarterly basis.

THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY 
Introduction
The Board of the Tourism KwaZulu-Natal Authority regards 
most seriously the need for absolute transparency of action 
and complete compliance with all laws and regulations and 
we work continuously to maintain our governance status. 
The Board of the Tourism KwaZulu-Natal Authority is 
responsible for the establishment of a risk management 
approach, development of fraud prevention policies, 
e"ectiveness of internal audit and the audit committee, 
as well as other governance structures. These include 
management processes aimed at minimising any conflict 
of interest and the implementation of a Code of Conduct, 
together with safety, health and environmental issues faced 
by the Tourism KwaZulu-Natal Authority. 

To this end, the Board, fully supported by the Executive 
Team and Management structures, remains wholly 
committed to the implementation of the highest standards 
of corporate governance throughout Tourism KwaZulu-
Natal. Management is responsible and accountable to the 
Board for the design, implementation and monitoring of the 
above-mentioned processes. In addition, it is responsible 
for integrating them into the day-to-day activities of the 
Tourism KwaZulu-Natal Authority.

Board Charter 
The Board Charter continues to regulate how business is 
conducted by the Board in accordance with the principles 
of good corporate governance. The Board Charter ensured 
that all Board members acting on behalf of the Authority 
were aware of their duties and responsibilities and the various 
legislation and regulations a"ecting their conduct. It also 

ensured that the principles of good Corporate Governance 
are applied in all their dealings in respect of and on behalf 
of the Authority. The Authority’s Board Charter was 
reviewed and approved by the Board during the 2020/21 
financial year and particular emphasis was given to how 
governance structures such as the Board Committees 
executed their respective mandate. Board Committee 
structures also helped shape quality and informed decision-
making, while a"ording us opportunities to optimally manage 
organisational and sector risk. During the 2020/21 period, 
the Terms of Reference for all committees were revised and 
approved by the Board.

Corporate Governance
Corporate governance embodies processes and systems 
by which public entities are directed, controlled and held 
to account. In this regard, the Board continued to ensure 
that strategy, risk, performance and sustainability were 
fully integrated. As per statutory requirement, the Board 
conducted a review process for the Tourism KwaZulu-Natal’s 
strategic Plan 2020-2025 and took stock and championed 
the vision for the next five years. During this period, the 
Board also focused on reviewing and approving policies, 
dealing with issues of organisational performance as well as 
monitoring of the implementation of the Tourism Master 
Plan 5-year implementation Plan and the alignment thereof 
to the new strategy given the changing environment that 
the country and the nation was dealing with the COVID-19 
global crisis.

The implementation of good governance is fundamental to 
the way in which our organisation conducts its operations. 
The Board, fully supported by the Executive Team and 
management structures, remains wholly committed to 
the implementation of the highest standards of corporate 
governance throughout Tourism KwaZulu-Natal. In ensuring 
the above, the Board, supported by Management engaged 
on a robust process of crafting a new corporate strategy 
for the 2020-2025 period. These sessions focused on 
key governance issues as articulated on tourism related 
prescripts and the divesting prospects that COVID-19 would 
have in the tourism space. 

The Board continued to discharge its responsibilities 
during the 2020/21 financial year, accordingly as four 
statutory Board meetings were held during the year in 
accordance with the annual schedule of meetings. A good 
governance framework remains in place and an experienced 
and committed Board has enabled our organisation to 
e"ectively further underpin the integrity and e!ciency of 
our organisation within both the KwaZulu-Natal and wider 
tourism environment. Existing governance structures also 
helped shape quality and informed decision-making, while 
a"ording us opportunities to optimally manage internal 
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organisational and tourism sector risks. A number of 
stakeholder engagement were held given that the Board 
needed to have strong ties with the District Municipalities 
in order to ensure that the COVID-19 recovery phase was 
understood at local government level.

Risk and Compliance 
The collective knowledge and expertise vested in our Board 
and Executive Management assisted us in understanding 
risks faced and the successful mitigation of such risks during 
the review period. TKZN regards most seriously the need for 
absolute transparency of action and complete compliance 
with all laws and regulations and we work continuously to 
maintain our governance status. 

We recognise that our organisation’s internal and external 
operating environment faced major obstacles as a result of 
the  COVID-19 global pandemic. The lack of social cohesion, 
which disrupted domestic tourism and more gravely the 
major health scare beyond and in our borders more recently 
internally. The 2020/21 reporting period posed internal 
external risks which devastated our organisation’s operating 
environment however, the organisation worked together to 
ensure the successful mitigation of such risks. As a result, 
Board Committee meetings were convened in order to 
assist the Board to display its oversight role of monitoring 
operational performance, policy review processes, ensuring 
the proper discharge of enterprise risk management and 
management of internal control as directed by the Board 

charter. Against this backdrop, the Rationalisation of 
Entities project was also underway, the Board supported by 
its Committees held several meetings with the Shareholder 
and the KZN- Film Commission with a view to implementing 
the objectives thereof. Some challenges were experienced 
in this regard, which led to the delays in the drafting of the 
legislation, however, the process continues with the guidance 
of the Shareholder. 

In essence, the COVID-19 pandemic resulted in a profound 
impact and subsequent shutdown on tourist arrivals on 
key source markets internationally and domestically. The 
world and South Africa in particular are coming together to 
contain the COVID-19 outbreak and must trust that we will 
see growing level of recovery in terms of tourist arrivals on 
our shores, in the near future.

Capacity Building
The Board participated in tourism marketing promotion 
platforms with a view to enhancing knowledge in the 
field of leisure and business tourism. In addition, formal 
Director Development Programmes and courses were 
implemented in the 2020/21 financial year and the Board 
participated as part of capacity building, in line with the 
Board Charter. Furthermore, these programmes assisted 
the Board to exercise its oversight role e"ectively at Board 
and Committee level as well as cementing the Board’s 
understanding of corporate governance matters such as 
issues of conflict of interest and the application thereof. 
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COMMITTEES

Committee No. of meetings held No. of members Name of members

Marketing and Tourism 
Development 4 3 Prof Thandi Nzama, Mr Paulos Ngcobo, 

Mr Terence Delomoney

Human Resource & 
Compensation 7 4

Mr Thami Mzileni, Prof Thokozani, 
Nzimakwe, Prof Thandi Nzama, Ms Mato 
Madlala

Audit & Risk 8 6

Mr Paulos Ngcobo, Mr Thami Mzileni, 
Prof Thokozani Nzimakwe, Ms Mato 
Madlala, Mr D Ramuadzizi, (Independent 
Audit Committee member), Mr M 
Ngcobo (Independent Audit Committee 
member)

Convention Bureau 4 3 Prof Thandi Nzama, Mr Thami Mzileni, 
Prof Thokozani Nzimakwe

RISK MANAGEMENT
Tourism KwaZulu-Natal has a risk management policy to 
mitigate organisational risks. The organisation conducted 
its annual risk assessment exercise, manages enterprise 
risks on an on-going basis, and provides quarterly status 
reports in this regard. The Audit and Risk Committee advises 
the public entity on risk management and independently 
monitors the e"ectiveness of risk management and reports 
to the Board on a quarterly basis. The organisation’s 
management of risks has ensured that there are no 
impediments to the entity’s performance. Furthermore, the 
Manager Board Secretariat, Risk and Compliance Services 
continued to act as the organisation’s Risk and Compliance 
O!cer.  

INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES
The Audit and Risk Committee is required to comprise of 
a minimum of three members, for the period under review 
currently it comprised of five members. Two of the members 
are Independent and the remainder are nominated from the 
Board.

The primary functions of the Committee include reviewing 
and recommending to the Board the following:

Annual Financial Statements:
• Examine and review the Annual Financial Statements 

with management and the external auditors before 
submitting to the department, and consider whether 
such documentation is complete and consistent with 
information known to members of the Committee 
and reflects appropriate accounting principles; 

• Review with management and external auditors 
the results of the audit, including any di!culties 
encountered. 

• Review with management and the external auditors all 
matters required to be communicated to stakeholders 
under generally accepted auditing standards. 

Internal Control:
• Considering the e"ectiveness of the organization’s 

internal control system, including information 
technology security and control; 

• Understanding the scope of internal and external 
auditor’s review of internal control over financial 
reporting, and obtain reports on significant findings 
and recommendations, together with management’s 
responses: 

• Reviewing the e"ectiveness of the internal control 
systems; 

• Reviewing the control procedures followed by 
management; 

• Reviewing the controls designed to ensure that assets 
are safeguarded; 

• Reviewing the Fraud Prevention plan implemented to 
prevent and detect fraud; 

• Reviewing risk management and related policies; and 
• Reviewing compliance with prescribed accounting 

framework. 

INTERNAL AUDIT
The Audit and Risk Committee monitored, guided and 
supervised the functioning of internal audit, ensuring that 
the roles and functions of external and internal audit are 
su!ciently clarified and coordinated so as to provide an 
objective overview of the operational e"ectiveness of the 
organisation’s system of internal control and reporting.

These include:
• Annually reviewing and approving the Internal Audit 

Charter to ensure adherence to best practices; 
• Approving the three year (3) Internal Audit 

Strategic and Annual Operational plans and review 
performance against the plan; 
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The table below discloses relevant information on the audit committee members:
AUDIT COMMITTEE INFO'

Name Qualifications Internal 
or external

If internal, 
position in 
the public 

entity

Date 
appointed

Date 
Resigned

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

Prof T Nzimakwe B Admin (Hons), MA, PhD External N/A 15 Nov 2017 N/A 4

Mr T Mzileni Matric, National Diploma in 
Public Management - Incomplete

External N/A N/A 4

Mr P Ngcobo Diploma: Human resources
Diploma: International Relations

External N/A 01 March 
2014

6

Ms M Madlala Diploma: Human resources
Diploma: International Relations

External N/A Reappointed N/A 4

*Mr M Ngcobo B Com Accounting  (Honours 
with CTA), B Com Accounting 
(Hons)

External N/A 15 Nov 2017 N/A 6

*Mr D 
Ramuadzizi

CA(SA), Registered Auditor, B 
Com (Information Systems and 
Accounting), Higher Diploma in 
Accountancy, MDP-BB-BEE

External N/A 01 May 
2018

N/A 6

* Independent Member – Audit & Risk Committee

REMUNERATION OF BOARD MEMBERS

Name Remuneration 
(R000)

Other 
allowance
(R000)

Other 
imbursements

(R000)
Total

(R000)

Mr Sthembiso Madlala N/A

Prof. Thandi Nzama N/A

 Ms Mato Madlala N/A

Mr Thamsanqa Mzileni N/A

Mr Terence Delomoney N/A N/A N/A

Mr D Ramuadzizi (Independent Audit Committee member) N/A

Mr M Ngcobo (Independent Audit Committee member N/A

Mr Paulos Ngcobo N/A

• Reviewing the adequacy of corrective action taken in 
response to significant internal audit findings; 

• Reviewing internal audit plans to ensure that high 
risk areas are identified and mitigation strategies 
developed; 

• Meeting separately with the Chief Audit Executive to 
discuss matters that the Committee believes should 
be discussed privately; 

• Reviewing significant matters reported by the 
internal audit function;  
 

• Reviewing the objectives and operations of the 
internal audit function; 

• Assessing adequacy of performance of the internal 
audit function; 

• Reviewing the co-operation and coordination 
between the internal and external audit functions; 

• Reviewing any significant disagreements or 
di"erences of opinion between management and the 
internal audit function; and 

• Evaluating the independence and e"ectiveness of the 
internal auditors



55

Part C

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
TKZN derives its mandate from a number of pieces of 
legislation and government policies. The entity took the 
initiative to develop a compliance monitoring checklist, 
drawing from the key strategic documents governing the 
functioning of the organisation. The checklist developed is in 
line with the minimum requirements set in terms of the King 
III on compliance issues. The compliance checklist is updated 
on a quarterly basis to monitor issues of compliance within 
the organization and with the necessary laws and regulations. 

FRAUD AND CORRUPTION 
The Authority has a fraud and corruption prevention policy in 
place.

O!cials are a"orded the necessary confidentiality when 
reporting suspected fraudulent and corrupt activities. TKZN 
continues to implement recommendations from the Fraud 
Prevention review which was based on Provincial Treasury’s 
experience on numerous public sector forensic investigations 
and best practices knowledge. A database of the inherent 
fraud risk universe was mapped against TKZN’s strategic 
and operational environment. Action plans that were 
recommended where residual risk remained major, moderate 
or minor is still monitored and relevant fraud related risks 
were elevated to the quarterly risk register in order to 
monitor the mitigation of risks.

MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST
Conflict of interest is managed through declarations of 
interests at every bid committee meeting. Where a member 
of the committee is conflicted, the member is requested to 
recuse themselves from any decisions pertaining that bid. 
TKZN Conditions of Employment makes it clear that 
employment with TKZN is on a full time basis. Hence prior 
communication to and approval from management at an 
appropriate level is required before doing any externally 
remunerated work. Furthermore, the register of annual 
declarations for the Board and Senior Management was kept. 
TKZN also ensured, where applicable, that the standards and 
disclosures required by the applicable legislative framework 
are observed and where applicable are reflected on the 
Annual Report.

CODE OF CONDUCT 
The Code of Ethics and Conduct “(the Code”) for TKZN 
is aimed at augmenting existing TKZN’s Policies and 
Procedures. The spirit of the document is to support ethical 
conduct by all individuals covered by it. Compliance with 
the Code is required of all employees of TKZN. The Code 
also applies to contract labour, consultants, temporary 
employees, part-time employees, casual employees, 
occasional employees, suppliers and others acting on behalf 
of, or dealing with TKZN. Any breach of the code of conduct 
is dealt in accordance to the TKZN disciplinary policy and 

procedure. This involves identification of a breach through 
investigation of the alleged breach, determining guilt or 
innocence based on the evidence and determining what 
appropriate sanction to be given. 

HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES
The Occupational Health and Safety Policy is in place and 
the entity has dedicated Occupational Health and Safety 
O!cers who are in possession of relevant tools to deal with 
issues of health and safety within the organisation. The 
Occupational Health and Safety Committee is in place and 
Management continues to implement the above mentioned 
policy with particular focus given to the compliance and 
safety of the o!ce building.

BOARD SECRETARY 
The Board Secretary acts as the gatekeeper of good 
corporate governance. The responsibilities enlisted in this 
position include ensuring the proper induction of new 
Board Members, providing the necessary guidance to Board 
members on good governance and changes in legislation. The 
Board Secretary is responsible for updating the charters and 
the provision of Board and Committee administrative support 
with the preparation and distribution of Board papers, minute 
keeping, Board evaluation, enterprise risk and corporate 
governance management, manages administration matters in 
the o!ce of the CEO, Shareholder liaison and administration 
of Executive Management meetings.
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT  
AND RISK COMMITTEE 
for the year ended 31 March 2020

The Tourism KwaZulu-Natal Audit and Risk Committee 
report is presented below: 

Audit and Risk Committee Responsibility
The function of the Audit and Risk Committee is, primarily, 
to assist the board in discharging its duties as they relate 
to the safeguarding of assets, the e"ective management 
of liabilities and working capital, the operation of adequate 
systems of internal controls, together with the preparation 
of financial reports and the Annual Financial Statements. 
The Committee reports that it has complied with its 
responsibilities arising from Section 50(1) of the Public 
Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulations.

The Audit and Risk Committee also reports that it has 
adopted appropriate formal Terms of Reference, as per 
its Audit Committee Charter. It has regulated its a"airs 
in compliance with this Charter in the discharging of its 
responsibilities as contained therein.

Audit and Risk Committee Members and Attendance
The Audit and Risk Committee for the 200/21 financial year 
comprised of the members detailed in the table below. Four 
meetings were scheduled and held. An additional two special 
meetings were also held during the period under review.

Risk Management
As part of ongoing e"orts to further improve governance, 
the Audit and Risk Committee reviewed the Risk 
Management Strategy which was developed by the 
Provincial Internal Audit Unit. The Committee made 
recommendations regarding the implementation of the 
strategy.

The Committee is of the opinion that once the risk 
management process has been rolled-out, it will significantly 
improve the strategic management and corporate 
governance of the entity. We believe that strategy, risk 
performance and sustainable service delivery are inseparable. 
Proper risk management will ensure that best practice 
is implemented and that the core function of the entity 
remains the focal point, so contributing enormously 
to service delivery. The Audit and Risk Committee will 
constantly monitor the roll-out of risk management in 
order to ensure that the process reaches maturity within a 
reasonable time.

Internal Audit
Internal Audit operated within an annual and three-year 
rolling plan approved by the Audit and Risk Committee. The 
audit coverage included review of the following:
Annual Financial Statements for year ended March 2020.
Interim Financial Statements for the period ended 
September 2019.

The results of these audits were presented to management 
for response and also presented to the Audit and Risk 
Committee for final review.

Based on the reports of the Internal Auditors, the Audit 
and Risk Committee is satisfied that Internal controls are in 
place and are working e"ectively.

The E#ectiveness of Internal Controls
The system of controls is designed to provide cost-e"ective 
assurance that assets are safeguarded and that liabilities 
and working capital are e"ectively managed in line with the 
Public Finance Management Act and King Ill/IV Report on 
Corporate Governance requirements. Internal audit provides 
for the Audit and Risk Committee and management 
processes, as well as the identification of corrective action 
and suggested enhancements of controls and processes.

Governance Processes and Accountability
The Audit and Risk Committee reports that it has adopted 
appropriate formal Terms of Reference as its Charter, has 
regulated its a"airs in compliance with this Audit Committee 
Charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as 
contained therein. The Audit and Risk Committee reviewed 
quarterly reports and is satisfied that the controls are in 
place to monitor spending patterns.

The quarterly reports were submitted to the Board and 
the Department of Economic Development, Tourism and 
Environmental a"airs in terms of the Transfer Funding 
Agreement.

EVALUATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

The Audit and Risk Committee has:
Reviewed and discussed the audited Annual Financial 
Statements to be included in the annual report with the 
Auditor-General and the Accounting Authority, and 
reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit.
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Appreciation
Our sincere appreciation and thanks are extended to all those who attended our meetings for their contribution and to 
the Chief Executive O!cer and management as a whole for their support and useful interaction during the year under 
review. The Audit and Risk Committee concurs with and accepts the Auditor-General’s conclusions on the Annual Financial 
Statements and is of the opinion that the audited Annual Financial Statements be accepted and read together with the 
report of the Auditor General.

.......................................................................
Signed on behalf of the Audit and Risk Committee:  
Mr P Ngcobo (Chairperson) 

July 2021



Opportunities
Do Exist.
Large tourism enterprises are willing to
provide enterprise and skills mentorship
programmes, alongside financial
assistance and programme facilitation
from Government.
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RESOURCES
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INTRODUCTION 
OVERVIEW OF HR MATTERS
The role of human resource management and administration 
is to plan, develop, and administer policies and programmes 
designed to make expeditious use of an organisation’s HR, 
thus e"ective utilisation of sizable HR, desirable working 
relationships among all members of the organisation, and 
maximum individual development.

The set priorities for the year were talent acquisition, 
human capital development, talent retention, performance 
management, employee relations, employee wellness, 
compliance and reporting. Through the Situational Analysis 
process, TKZN has successfully analysed the current 
organisational processes and the organisation's objectives 
and, identified the focus areas for future improvement, 
the areas of misalignment stipulated in the situational 
analysis implementation report. In the year under review, 
Management Development program, Leadership Coaching 
and HRIS online review were implemented as per the 
Situational Analysis outcomes.

TALENT ACQUISITION
Talent acquisition is an overall approach of sourcing 
highly talented individuals to maximise potential through 
training with the purpose of retaining talent as a return on 
investment for the organisation. Recruitment is done by way 
of advertising, security betting, targeted selection interviews 
and competency assessments.

LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT
Internal employees are given opportunities to develop their 
skills thus improving the e"ectiveness of the organisation 
and empower individuals to perform optimally. Training is 
delivered through a focused approach in compliance with the 
Skills Development Act, aligned to the Sector requirements. 
Individual development plans are based on functional, 
individual growth and compliance in line with observation 
enhancement.

The organisation also contributes to the development of 
unemployed youth through the Internship programme. 
Internship programmes focuses on training programmes 
through coaching and mentoring.

TALENT RETENTION
Talent retention is achieved through various strategies 
such as the organisation’s Pay Progression Policy and 
Long Service Recognition Policy which includes a service 
allowance. Investing in our employees enables the 
organization to retain talent and intellectual property.

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT
TKZN’s Performance Management Policy empowers the 
employees to have greater input to their personal career 

progression and enables the organization to better identify, 
recognize, and reward individuals based on agreed set 
criteria. The entity further recognizes that managing and 
reviewing employee performance and fostering employee 
development are critical factors in achieving overall success. 

REWARD AND RECOGNITION
The entity has adopted the sector benchmarking with regard 
to market related remuneration. The entity’s pay structure 
includes the important benefits of disability and life cover.

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS
The organisation adopts an inclusive engagement approach 
which facilitates the inclusion of Social Partners. Human 
Resources ensures full compliance with employment 
regulations and administers engagements with the 
employees through the recognized structures. Policy 
formulation is paramount for the smooth articulation and 
expectation as well as elimination of risks attached thereof. 
The Human Resources unit provides guidance and carries 
out an advisory oversight role.

WELLNESS PROGRAMMES
The organisation subscribes to a comprehensive Wellness 
programme which a significantly contributes to improving 
productivity. The organisation is cognisant that wellness 
promotes optimal performance, reduction in work related 
ill-health and improves employee relations. TKZN takes the 
issue of the healthy life style of the employees as a very 
central element. It believes in the notion of a well-balanced 
life style.

COMPLIANCE
The organisation subscribes to the full observation and 
adherence to the labour regulations of the country whilst 
adhering to governance and risk compliance.

REPORTING
Integrated Data, Industry Competitive Information
The organisation keeps abreast of corporate best practice 
by maintaining a competitive edge with reference to global 
standards and the ever-changing business world. Analysing 
meaningful information is highly vital to allow management 
to make viable and meaningful decisions. Human resources 
is a strategic enabler for the adaptation to changes and the 
related adjustments, contributing to the evolving business 
environment and business growth.

FUTURE HR PLANS/GOALS
The ongoing project and future plans includes the 
incorporation of the KZN Film Commission into TKZN. This 
encompasses various dimensions and expertise that require 
robust engagements and consultations to manage this 
change.
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HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT STATISTICS

Programme
Total Expenditure 

for the Programme 
(R'000)

Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R'000)

Personnel Exp. As 
a % of Total Exp. 

(R'000)
No. of Employees

Average Personnel 
Cost per Employee 

(R'000)

CEO's O!ce 8734 5740 66 5 1148
Marketing 55259 6772 12 6 1129
Tourism Information 
Services 18122 14184 78 20 709

Convention Bureau 33304 3162 9 4 791
Corporate Services 26573 11001 41 16 688
PR & 
Communications 26999 2328 9 3 776

Tourism 
Development 7384 5393 73 5 1079

176375 48580 823

PERSONNEL COST BY SALARY BAND

Level Personnel Expenditure
% of Personnel Exp. To 
Total Personnel Cost 

(R'000)
No. of Employees Average Personnel Cost 

per Employee (R'000)

Top Management 4031 8 2 2016
Senior Management 6063 12 4 1516
Professional Qualified 13031 27 11 1185
Skilled 21807 45 35 623
Semi-Skilled 3092 6 4 773
Unskilled 556 1 3 185
Total 48580 100 59 6297

 

PERFORMANCE REWARDS

Level Performance Rewards Personnel Expenditure 
(R'000)

% of Performance 
Rewards to Total 
Personnel Cost 
(R'000)

Top Management - 4031 0%
Senior Management - 6063 0%
Professional Qualified - 13031 0%
Skilled - 21807 0%
Semi-Skilled - 3092 0%
Unskilled - 556 0%
Total - 48580 0%
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TRAINING COSTS

Activity
Personnel 

Expenditure 
(R'000)

Training 
Expenditure 

(R'000)

Training 
Expenditure as 

a % of Personnel 
Cost

No. of Employee 
Trained

Avg. Training 
Cost per 

Employee 
(R'000)

Training (Bursaries and 
informal training) 48580 481882 992 60 8031

 

EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES

Level No. of Employees 
2019/2020

No. of 
Approved Posts 

2019/2020
No. of Vacancies % of Vacancies

Top Management 2 3 1 33

Senior Management 4 7 4 57

Professional Qualified 11 13 2 15

Skilled 35 41 6 15

Semi-Skilled 4 4 0 0

Unskilled 3 2 10 50

Total 59 70 12 17

 

EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

Salary Band
Employment at 

Beginning of the 
Period

Appointments Terminations Employment at the 
End of the Period

Top Management 2 Nil Nil 2

Senior Management 4 Nil Nil 4

Professional Qualified 11 1 1 11

Skilled 35 Nil Nil 35

Semi-Skilled 4 Nil Nil 4

Unskilled 2 1 Nil 3

Total 58 2 1 59
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REASONS FOR STAFF LEAVING
Reason Number % of Total no. of Sta" Leaving

Death - -

Resignation 1 1,7%

Dismissal 0

Retirement - -

Ill health - -

Expiry of contract - -

Other - -

Total 1 1,7%
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Opportunities
Do Exist.
Large tourism enterprises are willing to
provide enterprise and skills mentorship
programmes, alongside financial
assistance and programme facilitation
from Government.

64
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The reports and statements set out below comprise the annual financial statements presented to the 
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR!
GENERAL TO KWAZULU!
NATAL LEGISLATURE ON 
KWAZULU!NATAL TOURISM 
AUTHORITY
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

Opinion
1. I have audited the financial statements of the  

KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority set out on pages 
70 to 101, which comprise the statement of financial 
position as of 31 March 2021, the statement of finan-
cial performance, statement of changes in net assets, 
statement of cash flow and statement of comparison of 
budget information with actual information for the year 
then ended, as well as notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, 
in all material respects, the  financial position of the 
KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority as at 31 March 2021, 
and its financial performance and cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with Standards of Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of 
GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance 
Management Act of South Africa,1999 (Act No.1 of 
1999) (PFMA). 

Basis for the opinion
3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the Interna-

tional Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the 
auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the  
financial statements section of my report. 

4. I am independent of the entity in accordance with the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ 
International code of ethics for professional accountants 
(including International Independence Standards) (IES-
BA code) as well as other ethical requirements that are 
relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled my 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the IESBA code. 

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is su!-
cient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of matter
6. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not 

modified in respect of this matter.

Provision for doubtful debts
7. As disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements a 

provision for doubtful debts of R4,92 million due to the 
uncertainty of the recovery of the debt. Majority of the 
provision relates to VAT receivable as the amount has 
been outstanding for more than 120 days and the entity 
is in the process of deregistering for VAT.

Responsibilities of the accounting authority for the 
financial statements
8. The board, which constitutes the accounting authority 

is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in accordance with the in 
accordance with the SA Standards of GRAP and the  
requirements of the PFMA, and for such internal  
control as the accounting authority determines is neces-
sary to enable the preparation of  financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error.

9. In preparing the  financial statements, the accounting 
authority is responsible for assessing the entity’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters relating to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the appropriate gov-
ernance structure either intends to liquidate the entity 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 
to do so. 

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the  
financial statements
10. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the  financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assur-
ance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with the ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these  financial statements. 

11. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit 
of the  financial statements is included in the annexure 
to this auditor’s report.
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REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE ANNUAL 
PERFORMANCE REPORT
Introduction and scope
12. In accordance with the Public Audit Act 25 of 2004 

(PAA) and the general notice issued in terms thereof, 
I have a responsibility to report on the usefulness and 
reliability of the reported performance information 
against predetermined objectives for the selected pro-
gramme presented in the annual performance report. I 
performed procedures to identify material findings but 
not to gather evidence to express assurance.

13. My procedures address the usefulness and reliability of 
the reported performance information, which must be 
based on the entity’s approved performance planning 
documents. I have not evaluated the completeness 
and appropriateness of the performance indicators 
included in the planning documents. My procedures do 
not examine whether the actions taken by the entity 
enabled service delivery. My procedures do not extend 
to any disclosures or assertions relating to the extent 
of achievements in the current year or planned perfor-
mance strategies and information in respect of future 
periods that may be included as part of the reported 
performance information. Accordingly, my findings do 
not extend to these matters. 

14. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported 
performance information in accordance with the criteria 
developed from the performance management and 
reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, 
for the following selected programme presented in the 
entity’s annual performance report for the year ended 
31 March 2021: Programme 4: Marketing, 37pg – 39pg 

15. I performed procedures to determine whether the re-
ported performance information was properly presented 
and whether performance  was consistent with the ap-
proved performance planning documents. I performed 
further procedures to determine whether the indicators 
and related targets were measurable and relevant, and 
assessed the reliability of the reported performance 
information to determine whether it was valid, accurate 
and complete.

16. The material finding on the usefulness and reliability of 
the performance information of the selected marketing 
programme is as follows:

Percentage (%) Top of mind awareness
17. I was unable to obtain su!cient appropriate audit evi-

dence for the reported achievement of the target. This 
was due to limitations on the scope of my work. I was 
unable to confirm the reported achievement by alter-
native means. Consequently, I was unable to determine 
whether any adjustments were required to the reported 
achievement of 73%.

Other matters
18. I draw attention to these matters below. 

Achievement of planned targets
19. Refer to the annual performance report on pages … 

to … for information on the achievement of planned 
targets for the year and management’s explanations 
provided for the under/over achievement of targets. This 
information should be considered in the context of the 
material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the 
reported performance information in paragraph 17 of 
my report.

Adjustment of material misstatements
20. I identified material misstatements in the annual per-

formance report submitted for auditing. These material 
misstatements were on the reported performance 
information of the Marketing programme. As manage-
ment subsequently corrected only some of the mis-
statements, I raised material findings on the usefulness 
and reliability of the reported performance information. 
Those that were not corrected are reported above.

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH 
LEGISLATION
Introduction and scope
21. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice 

issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report 
material findings on the entity’s compliance with specif-
ic matters in key legislation. I performed procedures to 
identify findings but not to gather evidence to express 
assurance. 

22. The material findings on compliance with specific mat-
ters in key legislation are as follows:
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Procurement and contract management
23. Some of the competitive bids were adjudicated by a 

bid adjudication committee that was not composed in 
accordance with the policies of the entity, as required by 
Treasury Regulation 16A6.2 (a) and (b).

Expenditure management
24. E"ective and appropriate steps were not taken to pre-

vent irregular expenditure amounting to R8,14 million 
disclosed in note 25 to the annual financial statements, 
as required by section 51(1)(b)(ii) of the PFMA.

OTHER INFORMATION
25. The accounting authority is responsible for the oth-

er information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the annual report. The other 
information does not include the  financial statements, 
the auditor’s report and the selected programme pre-
sented in the annual performance report that have been 
specifically reported in this auditor’s report. 

26. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on 
the reported performance information and compliance 
with legislation do not cover the other information and I 
do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance 
conclusion on it.

27. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements and the selected programme 
presented in the annual performance report. 

28. I did not receive the other information prior to the date 
of this auditor’s report. When I do receive and read 
this information, if I conclude that there is a material 
misstatement therein, I am required to communicate 
the matter to those charged with governance and 
request that the other information be corrected. If the 
other information is not corrected, I may have to retract 
this auditor’s report and re-issue an amended report as 
appropriate. However, if it is corrected this will not be 
necessary.

INTERNAL CONTROL DEFICIENCIES
29. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the  

financial statements, reported performance information 
and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my 
objective was not to express any form of assurance on it. 
The matters reported below are limited to the significant 
internal control deficiencies that resulted in the findings 
on the selected programme and the findings on compli-
ance with legislation included in this report.

30. Management did not adequately apply supply chain 
management prescripts, as a result irregular expenditure 
was not prevented.  

31. Management did not ensure that reported achieve-
ments relating to performance information could be 
supported by reliable evidence.

.......................................................................
Pietermaritzburg
31 July 2021
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2021

Note(s) 2021
R’000

2020
R’000

Assets
Current Assets 
Receivables from exchange transactions 13 2 200 3 774
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 14 36 397
Cash and cash equivalents 15 61 754 68 080
Non-Current Assets 63 990 72 251
Property, plant and equipment 11 1 759 2 627
Intangible assets 12 378 283
Total Assets 2 137 2 910
Liabilities 66 127 75 161
Current Liabilities
Payables from exchange transactions 16 12 543 25 698
Payable from non-exchange transactions 16 31 154 52 029

43 697 77 727

Total Liabilities 43 697 77 727

Net Assets 22 433 (2 561)

Accumulated surplus 22 433 (2 561)
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Note(s) 2021
R’000

2020
R’000

Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Other Income % 329 1 502
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Government Grants (Discretional) 2 128 691 128 356
Project Income - Non Discretional Grants 19 - 41 472
Transfer revenue
Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 128 691 169 828
Total revenue 2 129 020 171 330
Expenditure
CEO’s O!ce 3 (9 586) (8 833)
Tourism Information Services 4 (18 728) (18  462)
Tourism Development 5 (5 861) (7 656)
Marketing expenses 6 (24 469) (66 230)
Public Relations and Communication 7 (12 522) (27 679)
Convention Bureau 8 (5 147) (33 847)
Corporate Services 9 (27 659) (26 484)
Loss on disposal of assets (53) -
Total expenditure (104 026) (189 191)
Surplus (deficit) for the year 24 994 (17 861)

KWAZULU!NATAL TOURISM AUTHORITY TRADING AS TOURISM KWAZULU!NATAL
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Accumulated surplus 
R’000

Total net assets 
R’000

Balance at 01 April 2019 15 300 15 300
Changes in net assets  
Surplus for the year (17 861) (17 861)

Total changes (17 861) (17 861)
Balance at 01 April 2020 (2 561) (2 561)
Changes in net assets 
(Deficit) / Surplus for the period 24 994 24 994

Total changes 24 994 24 994
Balance at 31 March 2021 22 433 22 433

KWAZULU!NATAL TOURISM AUTHORITY TRADING AS TOURISM KWAZULU!NATAL
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Note(s) 2021
R’000

2020
R’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Government grants received 111 091 128 356
Other income 328 1 326
Cash receipts from debtors - 8 526
Income received for special projects - 83 050

111 419 221 258
Payments
Employee costs (47 913) (48 173)
Suppliers (69 267) (157 787)

(117 180) (205 960)
Net cash flows from operating activities 17 (5 761) 15 298

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 11 (275) (736)
Purchase of intangible assets 12 (290) (189)
Net cash flows from investing activities (565) (925)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (6 326) 14 373
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 68 080 53 707
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15 61 754 68 080
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
Budget on Cash Basis

Approved
budget

Adjustment Final 
Budget

Actual amounts  
on accrual basis

Di"erence
between final

budget and
actual

Reference

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions

Other income 351 - 351 329 (22)
Revenue from non-exchange
transactions
Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 111 079 17 600 128 679 128 691 12
Total revenue 111 430 17 600 129 030 129 020 (10)
Expenditure
CEO o!ce (10 471) - (10 471) (9 586) 885 A
Tourism Information Services (22 370) - (22 370) (18 729) 3 641 B
Tourism Development (9 938) - (9 938) (5 861) 4 077 C
Marketing Expenses (22 310) (10 500) (32 810) (24 469) 8 341 D

Public Relations and communications (12 738) (7 100) (19 838) (12 522) 7 316 E

Convention Bureau (9 119) - (9 119) (5 147) 3 972 F
Corporate Services (23 484) - (23 484) (27 659) (4 175) G
Total expenditure (110 430) (17 600) (128 030) (103 973) 24 057
Surplus/(Deficit) - - - 25 047 25 047
Surplus for the year from
continuing operations - - - 25 047 25 047

Loss on sale of Assets - - - (53) (53)
Capital expenditure (1 000) - (1 000) (565) 435 H
Actual Amount on Comparable
Basis as Presented in the Budget and 
Actual Comparative Statement

(111 430) (17 600) (129 030) 24 429 25 429

Reconciliation of net surplus on accrual to cash flow statement
Basis di#erence
Actual amount on comparable basis as presented in 
the budget and actual comparative statement (24 429)

Operating activities (5 761)
Investing activities (565)
Actual Amount in the cash
flow statement (6 326)
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A: CEO's OFFICE
• There were savings from salaries of R 847 000
• There was an assessment of board members not yet 

completed at year end.

B: TOURISM INFORMATION OFFICE
• The tenders for the Mobile APP, SAP Business One 

and ICT infrastructure were not awarded during the 
year which resulted in savings. The budget for ICT 
operations was R5 000 000 of which R2 400 000 
was utilised.

• Due to COVID-19 there was decrease in distribution 
of material as the information o!ces were closed. 
The budget for leases for information o!ces was R1 
300 000 of which R586 000 was utilised.

C: TOURISM DEVELOPMENT
• Late approval of the design and development of the 

online tourism enterprise support system.
• Covid-19 restrictions resulted in the sector being on 

lockdown that resulted in funds not being utilised.

D: MARKETING
• There was a delay in the execution of a television 

campaign with the SABC amounting to R5 600 
000, due to a delay in obtaining SCM documents.

E: PUBLIC RELATIONS
• The summer campaign was cancelled due to 

COVID-19, which resulted in the country going to 
second wave necessitating the cancellation of events.

• Cancellation of the Easter campaign due to 
COVID-19, because of the fear of the third wave and 
government restrictions during the Easter holidays.

F: CONVENTION BUREAU
• The COVID-19 epidemic and government 

restrictions on hosting events and international travel 
the funds were not utilised.

G: CORPORATE SERVICES
• Non-Cash Items like depreciation ,amortsation and 

provisions.

H: CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
• Due to COVID-19 ,the entity was unable to do o!ce 

fiitings and alterations to the King Shaka Airport 
o!ce.

The entity obtained authorisation from Provincial Treasury 
to repurpose funds from Bid Fund and COVID-19 Relief 
Fund to be utilised for the Summer Campaign amounting 
to R17 600 000. The entity obtained authorisation from 
Provincial Treasury to repurpose funds from Bid Fund and 
COVID-19 Relief Fund to be utilised for the Summer 
Campaign amounting to R17 600 000.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL  
 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The annual financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting 
Standards Board in accordance with Section 91(1) of the 
Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999).

These annual financial statements have been prepared on 
an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with 
historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, 
unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South 
African Rand.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have 
been consistently applied in the preparation of these annual 
financial statements, are disclosed below.

1.1 Presentation currency
These annual financial statements are presented in South 
African Rand, which is the functional currency of the entity.

1.2 Going concern assumption
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the 
basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. 
This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance 
future operations and that the realisation of assets and 
settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations will occur in 
the ordinary course of business.

1.3 Materiality
Material omissions or misstatements of items are material 
if they could, individually or collectively, influence the 
decisions or assessments of users made on the basis of 
the financial statements. Materiality depends on the 
nature or size of the omission or misstatement judged in 
the surrounding circumstances. The nature or size of the 
information item, or a combination of both, could be the 
determining factor.

Assessing whether an omission or misstatement could 
influence decisions of users, and so be material, requires 
consideration of the characteristics of those users. The 
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of 
Financial Statements states that users are assumed to 
have a reasonable knowledge of government, its activities, 
accounting and a willingness to study the information with 
reasonable diligence. Therefore, the assessment takes into 

account how users with such attributes could reasonably 
be expected to be influenced in making and evaluating 
decisions.

1.4  Classification of expenses
An entity shall present an analysis of expenses using a 
classification based on either the nature of expenses or their 
function within the entity, whichever provides information 
that is reliable and more relevant.
The organisation has opted to classify its expenses based on a 
function basis (Programme).

1.5  Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current 
assets that are held for use in the production or supply of 
goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative 
purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one 
period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
recognised as an asset when:

• it is probable that future economic benefits or service 
potential associated with the item will flow to the 
entity; and 

• the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the 
purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset 
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable 
of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.
Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange 
transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of 
property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in 
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management.

Items such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing 
equipment are recognised when they meet the definition of 
property, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the 
straight-line basis over their expected useful lives to their 
estimated residual value.
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Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment 
have been assessed as follows:

Item Depreciation 
method

Average 
useful life

Computer hardware Straight line 2 years

O!ce equipment Straight line -

Photographic Straight line 6 years

Dictaphones Straight line 3 years

Television Straight line 6 years

Refrigeration Straight line 5 years

O!ce furniture Straight line 6 years

O!ce fittings and 
alterations Straight line 6 years

The depreciable amount of an asset is allocated on a 
systematic basis over its useful life.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a 
cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item 
is depreciated separately.

The depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which 
the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential are 
expected to be consumed by the entity. The depreciation 
method applied to an asset is reviewed at least at each 
reporting date and, if there has been a significant change 
in the expected pattern of consumption of the future 
economic benefits or service potential embodied in the 
asset, the method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. 
Such a change is accounted for as a change in an accounting 
estimate.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in 
surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount 
of another asset.

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised 
when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further 
economic benefits or service potential expected from the 
use of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item 
of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or 
deficit when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising 
from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and 
equipment is determined as the di"erence between the net 
disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the 
item.

1.6 Intangible assets

An asset is identifiable if it either:
• is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or 

divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, 
rented or exchanged, either individually or together 
with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, 
regardless of whether the entity intends to do so; or

• arises from binding arrangements (including rights 
from contracts), regardless of whether those rights 
are transferable or separable from the entity or from 
other rights and obligations.

An intangible asset is recognised when:
• it is probable that the expected future economic 

benefits or service potential that are attributable to 
the asset will flow to the entity; and

• the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured 
reliably.

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-
exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition 
is measured at its fair value as at that date.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortisation and any impairment losses.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for 
intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite 
useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator 
that the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is 
tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is 
amortised over its useful life.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, 
on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:
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Item Depreciation 
method

Average useful 
life

Computer software Straight line 2 years

Intangible assets are derecognised:
• on disposal; or
• when no future economic benefits or service potential 

are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of intangible 
assets is included in surplus or deficit when the asset is 
derecognised (unless the Standard of GRAP on leases 
requires otherwise on a sale and leaseback).

1.7 Impairment 
At each reporting date, the entity reviews the carrying 
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine 
whether there is any indication that those assets may be 
impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable 
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the 
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less 
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the assets 
is reduced to its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are immediately recognised as an expense, 
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued under 
another standard, in which the impairment loss is treated as 
a revaluation decrease under the standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the 
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised 
estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased 
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined had no impairment 
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of 
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless 
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under the 
standard, in which the reversal of the impairment loss is 
treated as a revaluation increase under that other standard. 

1.8 Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, short term 
investments with financial institutions and the amount 
deposited with financial institutions as part of the entity’s 
current account.

Funds under administration in respect of projects are 
deposited with financial institutions and are accounted as 
such.

Cash and cash equivalents for the entity coming from other 
income, comes from interest.

1.9  Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to 
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a 
residual interest of another entity.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is 
the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is 
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, 
plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the e"ective 
interest method of any di"erence between that initial 
amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction 
(directly or through the use of an allowance account) for 
impairment or uncollectibility.
Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised 
financial asset or financial liability from an entity’s statement 
of financial position.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be 
exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable 
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

A financial asset is:
• cash;
• a residual interest of another entity; or a contractual 

right to:
- receive cash or another financial asset from 

another entity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial liabilities 

with another entity under conditions that are 
potentially favourable to the entity.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual 
obligation to:

• deliver cash or another financial asset to another 
entity; or

• exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under 
conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the 
entity.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash 
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rates.

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the 
event of di!culty in meeting obligations associated with 
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or 
another financial asset.
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A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed 
to make a payment when contractually due.

Classification
The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes 
and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of 
financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class
• Receivables 
• Cash

Category
• Financial asset measured at amortised cost 
• Financial asset measured at fair value(face value)

The entity has the following types of financial liabilities 
(classes and category) as reflected on the face of the 
statement of financial position or in the notes thereto:

• Payables 
• Financial liability measured at amortised cost

Initial recognition
The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in 
its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
The entity recognises financial assets using trade date 
accounting.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial 
liabilities
The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities 
after initial recognition using the following categories:

• Financial instruments at fair value. 
• Financial instruments at amortised cost. 
• Financial instruments at cost.

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are 
subject to an impairment review.

Presentation
Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component 
that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense 
in surplus or deficit.

1.10 Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities
The entity made a strategic decision to de-register as a 
VAT vendor as it is a Public authority and did not receive 
notification from the Commissioner on or after 1 April 2005 
that it must register for VAT.

Tax expenses
The entity operates on funds derived from Government 
grants. In terms of a directive issued by South African 
Revenue Services, the receipt and accruals of the KwaZulu-
Natal Tourism Authority are exempt from Income tax in 
terms of section 10(1)(cA)(i) of the Income Tax Act. – 
Exemption No. 930025014.

1.11 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does 
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 
to ownership.

Operating leases - lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense 
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The di"erence 
between the amounts recognised as an expense and the 
contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease 
asset or liability.

1.12 Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an 
entity in exchange for service rendered by employee.

Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a 
result of either:

• an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s 
employment before the normal retirement date; or 

• an employee’s decision to accept voluntary 
redundancy in exchange for those benefits.

Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits 
(other than post-employment benefits and termination 
benefits) that are not due to be settled within twelve months 
after the end of the period in which the employees render 
the related service.
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Vested employee benefits are employee benefits that are 
not conditional on future employment.

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other 
than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within 
twelve months after the end of the period in which the 
employees render the related service.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during 
a reporting period, the entity recognise the undiscounted 
amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be 
paid in exchange for that service:

• as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any 
amount already paid. If the amount already paid 
exceeds the undiscounted amount of the benefits, 
the entity recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid 
expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead 
to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a 
cash refund; and

• as an expense, unless another Standard requires or 
permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an 
asset.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as 
an expense as the employees render services that increase 
their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating 
absences, when the absence occurs. The entity measures 
the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences 
as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a 
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the 
reporting date.

The entity recognise the expected cost of bonus, incentive 
and performance related payments when the entity has 
a present legal or constructive obligation to make such 
payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate 
of the obligation can be made. A present obligation exists 
when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the 
payments.

Post-employment benefits: Defined contribution plans
Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit 
plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a 
separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive 
obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not 
hold su!cient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to 
employee service in the current and prior periods.
When an employee has rendered service to the entity during 

a reporting period, the entity recognise the contribution 
payable to a defined contribution plan in exchange for that 
service: `

• as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any 
contribution already paid. If the contribution already 
paid exceeds the contribution due for service before 
the reporting date, an entity recognise that excess as 
an asset

• (prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment 
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future 
payments or a cash refund; and

• as an expense, unless another Standard requires or 
permits the inclusion of the contribution in the cost 
of an asset.

1.13 Provisions and contingencies

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the 
expenditure expected to be required to settle the present 
obligation at the reporting date.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted 
to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed 
if it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits or service potential will be 
required, to settle the obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a 
provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of 
time. This increase is recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the 
provision was originally recognised.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits.

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present 
obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is 
recognised and measured as a provision.

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities 
recognised in entity combinations that are recognised 
separately are subsequently measured at the higher of:

• the amount that would be recognised as a provision; 
and 

• the amount initially recognised less cumulative 
amortisation.
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Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not 
recognised.

Items are classified as commitments when an entity has 
committed itself to future transactions that will normally 
result in an outflow of cash.

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised 
contractual commitments.

Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve 
a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the 
financial statements, if the following criteria is met:

• Contracts should be non-cancellable or only 
cancellable at significant cost and

• Contracts should relate to something other 
than the routine, steady, state business of the 
entity – therefore salary commitments relating to 
employment contracts or social security benefit 
commitments are excluded.

• Open purchase orders issued during the financial 
period under review .

1.14 Commitments
Items are classified as commitments when an entity has 
committed itself to future transactions that will normally 
result in an outflow of cash.

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised 
contractual commitments.

Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve 
a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the 
financial statements, if the following criteria is met:

• Contracts should be non-cancellable or only 
cancellable at significant cost and

• Contracts should relate to something other than 
the routine, steady, state business of the entity – 
therefore salary

• commitments relating to employment contracts or 
social security benefit commitments are excluded.

•   Open purchase orders issued during the financial 
period under review .

1.15  Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service 
potential during the reporting period when those inflows 

result in an increase in net assets, other than increases 
relating to contributions from owners.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be 
exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, 
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume 
rebates.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the 
following conditions have been satisfied:

• the entity has transferred to the purchaser the 
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the 
goods;

• the entity retains neither continuing managerial 
involvement to the degree usually associated with 
ownership nor e"ective control over the goods sold;

• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
• it is probable that the economic benefits or service 

potential associated with the transaction will flow to 
the entity; and

• the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the 
transaction can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering 
of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated 
with the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage 
of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The 
outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all 
the following conditions are satisfied:

• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
• it is probable that the economic benefits or service 

potential associated with the transaction will flow to 
the entity; the stage of completion of the transaction 
at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and

• the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to 
complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When services are performed by a number of acts over a 
specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a straight line 
basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence 
that some other method better represents the stage of 
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completion. When a specific act is much more significant 
than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed 
until the significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the 
rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue 
is recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised 
that are recoverable.

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of 
completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage 
of completion is determined by the proportion that costs 
incurred to date bear to the total estimated costs of the 
transaction.

Interest
Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets 
yielding interest or similar distributions is recognised when:

• It is probable that the economic benefits or service 
potential associated with the transaction will flow to 
the entity, and

• The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the 
e"ective interest rate method.

1.16  Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or 
service potential received and receivable by an entity, which 
represents an increase in net assets, other than increases 
relating to contributions from owners.

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify 
that the future economic benefits or service potential 
embodied in the asset is required to be consumed by the 
recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service 
potential must be returned to the transferor.

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not 
exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an 
entity either receives value from another entity without 
directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or 
gives value to another entity without directly receiving 
approximately equal value in exchange.

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service 
potential from non-exchange transactions, other than taxes.

Non-discretional government grant
Restrictions on transferred government grants are 
stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a 
grant may be used, but do not specify that future economic 
benefits or service potential is required to be returned to the 
transferor if not deployed as specified.

Recognition
An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction 
recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to 
the extent that a liability is also recognised in respect of the 
same inflow.

As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as 
a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-
exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the 
carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an 
amount of revenue equal to that reduction.

Measurement
Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at 
the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the 
entity.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity 
recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to 
the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the 
date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a 
liability. Where a liability is required to be recognised it will 
be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to 
settle the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount 
of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. 
When a liability is subsequently reduced, because the taxable 
event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the 
reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue.

1.17 Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions
A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial 
recognition in Rands, by applying to the foreign currency 
amount the spot selling exchange rate between the 
functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of 
the transaction.
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Exchange di"erences arising on the settlement of monetary 
items or on translating monetary items at rates di"erent 
from those at which they were translated on initial 
recognition during the period or in previous annual financial 
statements are recognised in surplus or deficit in the period 
in which they arise.
1.18  Comparative figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified 
to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

1.19  Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in 
vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been 
exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial 
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. 
The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature 
of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently 
accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial 
performance.

1.20 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is 
expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred 
in contravention of or that is not in accordance with a 
requirement of any applicable legislation, including:

a. this Act; or
b. the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 

1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; 
or

c. any provincial legislation providing for procurement 
procedures in that provincial government.

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which 
was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA 
requires the following (e"ective from 1 April 2008):

1.21  Budget information

The entities are typically subject to budgetary limits in 
the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or 

equivalent), which are given e"ect through authorising 
legislation, appropriation or similar.

General purpose financial reporting by entity shall provide 
information on whether resources were obtained and used in 
accordance with the legally adopted budget.

The approved budget is prepared on a cash basis and 
presented by programmes linked to performance outcome 
objectives.

The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 
2020/04/01 to 2021/03/31.

The annual financial statements and the budget are not 
on the same basis of accounting therefore a reconciliation 
between the statement of financial performance and 
the budget have been included in the annual financial 
statements. 

Comparative information is not required.

1.22  Related parties

A related party is a person or an entity with the ability 
to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise 
significant influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an 
entity that is subject to common control, or joint control.

Control is the power to govern the financial and operating 
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its 
activities.

Related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services 
or obligations between the reporting entity and a related 
party, regardless of whether a price is charged.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the 
financial and operating policy decisions of an entity, but is 
not control over those policies.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, 
directing and controlling the activities of the entity, 
including those charged with the governance of the entity 
in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are 
required to perform such functions.
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The entity is exempt from disclosure requirements in relation to related party transactions if that transaction occurs within 
normal supplier and/or client/recipient relationships on terms and conditions no more or less favourable than those which it is 
reasonable to expect the entity to have adopted if dealing with that individual entity or person in the same circumstances and 
terms and conditions are within the normal operating parameters established by that reporting entity’s legal mandate.

Where the entity is exempt from the disclosures in accordance with the above, the entity discloses narrative information 
about the nature of the transactions and the related outstanding balances, to enable users of the entity’s financial statements 
to understand the e"ect of related party transactions on its annual financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2021
R’000

2020
R’000

2. REVENUE
Grant from EDTEA 128 691 128 356
Other income 329 1 502
Project income - 41 472

129 020 171 330
The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services are as follows:
Other income 329 1 502
The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as follows:
Transfer revenue
Government grants 128 691 128 356
Project Income - 41 472

128 691 169 828

3. CEO'S OFFICE
Consultants and professional fees 394 511
Travel and accommodation costs 476 289
Printing and stationery 65 8
Workshop 86 9
Directors Remunerations 2 578 2 189
Operating expenses 118 253
Employee Costs 5 852 5 574
Venues and Facilities 17 -

9 586 8 833
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2021
R’000

2020
R’000

4. TOURISM INFORMATION SERVICES
Consultants and professional fees 1 090 489
Rental 586 1 054
Postage and courier 6 290
Travel and accommodation costs 23 407
Printing and stationery - 37
Operating expenses 2 547 2 274
Subscriptions 70 75
Employee costs 14 407 13 836

18 729 18 462

5. TOURISM DEVELOPMENT
Consultants and professional fees 613 722

Travel and accommodation costs 37 926

Project Expense - 938

Workshops 62 75

Operating expenses 56 69

Employee costs 5 093 4 926

5 861 7656

6. MARKETING EXPENSES
Advertising 17 508 41 412
Project expense - 9 941
Travel and accommodation costs 826 7 474
Subscriptions - 98
Operating expenses 127 164
Venues and Facilities - 168
Workshops 121 582
Employee costs 5 887 6 391

24 469 66 230
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2021
R’000

2020
R’000

7. PUBLIC RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
Advertising 6 334 11 894
Postage and courier - 10
Project expenses - 11 196
Travel and accommodation costs 1 825 1 429
Printing and stationery 3 130
Communications 64 45
Operating expenses - 129
Subscriptions 2 002 529
Sponsorships - 129
Employee costs 2 294 2 188

12 522 27 679

8. CONVENTION BUREAU
Advertising - 32
Travel and accommodation 85 1 667
Workshops 533 1 125
Sponsorships 450 8 165
Printing and stationery 3 4
Operating expenses 30 66
Subscriptions 330 305
Employee costs 3 716 2 990
Project expenses - 19 493

5 147 33 847
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2021
R’000

2020
R’000

9. CORPORATE SERVICES
Advertising 256 104
Postage and Courier - 8
Employee wellness 213 148
Bank charges 47 84
Travel and accommodation costs 6 94
Printing and stationery 397 651
Training and development 428 461
Audit fees 1 738 1 954
Foreign exchange loss 108 1 686
General and administrative expenses 1 456 1 661
Debtors impairment 3 685 14
Depreciation and Amortisation 1 285 1 466
Lease rentals on operating lease 4 990 7 112
Consultants and professional fees 243 796
Employee costs 12 807 10 245

27 659 26 484

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONT.
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2021
R’000

2020
R’000

10. EMPLOYEE COSTS
The employee costs for the organisation are not separately disclosed on the face of statement of financial performance, 
and are individually disclosed in the respective departments. Below is a disclosure for the entire organisation:
Employee costs for the respective departments
The CEO's o!ce 5 852 5 574
Tourism Information Services 14 407 13 836
Tourism development 5 093 4 926
Marketing 5 887 6 391
Public relations and communications 2 294 2188
Convention Bureau 3 716 2 990
Corporate services 12 807 10 245

50 056 46 150

Other long-term benefits

Other long-term benefits are employee benefits (other than post-retirement benefits) that are not due to be settled 
within 12 months after the end of the period in which employees render related service. It is the entity's policy that 
each employee will receive a R5 000 after 10 consecutive years of employment, R7 500 after 15 consecutive years of 
employment and R10 000 after 20 consecutive years of employment. Included in employee costs is an amount of  
R 397 334 raised for long service accrued liability (see note 16). 

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised and expensed when the payment is made. Tourism KwaZulu Natal Authority 
contributes to the Old mutual Orion provident fund. Membership is compulsory for all employees. The fund is a defined 
contribution plan and the organisation contributes 15% of the pensionable remuneration. Included in the employee costs 
disclosed above, is an amount of paid over for provident fund. (see the table below for details)

Defined provident fund contribution plan 4 356 4 180

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONT.
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2021 2020

Cost / 
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation and

accumulated
impairment

Carrying value Cost / 
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation and

accumulated
impairment

Carrying 
value

O!ce furniture 2 360 (1 607) 753 2 590 (1 495) 1 095
O!ce equipment 356 (250) 106 434 (236) 198
Computer hardware 4 354 (3 458) 896 4 551 (3235) 1 316
O!ce fittings and Alterations 202 (198) 4 202 (184) 18
Total 7 272 (5 513) 1 759 7 777 (5 150) 2 627

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2021

Opening
balance Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

O!ce furniture 1 095 - (34) (308) 753
O!ce equipment 198 - - (92) 106
Computer Hardware 1 316 275 (19) (676) 896
O!ce fittings and Alterations 18 - - (14) 4

2 627 275 (53) (1 090) 1 759

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2020
Opening

balance Additions Depreciation Total

O!ce furniture 1 311 124 (340) 1 095
O!ce equipment 158 106 (66) 198
Computer Hardware 1 696 506 (886) 1 316
O!ce fittings and Alterations 32 - (14)

3 197 736 (1 306) 2 627
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2021
R’000

2020
R’000

12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2021 2020

Cost / 
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation and

accumulated
impairment

Carrying value Cost / 
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation and

accumulated
impairment

Carrying 
value

Computer software 2 196 (1 818) 378 1 906 (1 623) 283
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2021

Opening
balance Additions Depreciation Total

Computer software 283 290 (195) 378
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2020
Computer software 255 189 (161) 283

13. RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Trade debtors 406 421

Sta" debtors 68 65

VAT receivable 4 493 4 493

Less: Provision for doubtful debt (4 915) (1 230)

Prepayments 2 139 16

Rental deposit 9 9

2 200 3 774

The debt impairment disclosed in the statement of financial performance is the movement between the prior year balance 
and the current balance of the provision A provision of 4 493 000 has been raised in relation to the VAT receivable as the 
amount has been outstanding for more than 120 days and the entity is in the process of deregistering for VAT.

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

Opening balance 1 229 1 215

Provision for impairment 3 686 14

4 915 1 229



92

Part E

2021
R’000

2020
R’000

14. RECEIVABLES FROM NON!EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Public sector partnerships and contribution - 1

SARS: PAYE 36 70

Other receivables from non-exchange - 326

36 297

SARS: PAYE, the amount of R35 972 relates to employee tax deduction, which has been reconciled as at 31 March 2021,
where a credit is due to the organisation.

15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 1 18

Bank balances 53 743 57 725

Short-term deposits 8 010 10 337

61 754 68 080

16. PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Trade payables 725 297

Other payables 100 46

Accrued leave pay 5 210 2 937

Accrued bonus 256 257

Trade accruals 2 810 18 461

Operating lease liability 2 565 3 303

Long service accrual 423 397

Provision for Salary Increase 454 -

12 543 25 698

The Accrued leave pay has increase by R2 273 000 from prior year due to sta" working predominantly from home as 
result of COVID-19 epidemic and restrictions, which saw sta" taking less leave during the year.

Payables from non-exchange transactions

Project funds 31 154 52 029

Details on Project funds are on Note 19

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2021
R’000

2020
R’000

17. CASH $USED IN% GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Surplus (deficit) 24 994 (17 861)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 1 285 1 466
Loss on disposal of assets 53 -
Changes in working capital:
Increase /(Decrease ) in receivables from exchange transactions 1 574 1 745
Increase/(Decrease ) in receivables from non-exchange transactions 361 6 519
Increase/(Decrease) in Payables from exchange transactions (13 155) (15 393)
Increase /(Decrease) in Payables from non-exchange transactions (20 875) 38 822

(5 761) 15 298

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONT.
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2021
R’000

2020
R’000

18. RELATED PARTIES

Relationships
MEC of Economic Development, Tourism and 
Environmental A"airs

HOD of Economic development, Tourism and 
Environmental a"airs

Non-executive Directors

Executive Management 
Economic development, Tourism and Environmental A"airs 
Moses Kotane 
Richard Bay Industrial Development Zone
Ithala Development Finance Corporation 
KwaZulu-Natal Growth Fund
KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority 
KwaZulu-Natal Film Commission 
KwaZulu-Natal Sharks Board 
Dube Trade Port 
KwaZulu-Natal Trade and Investment 
Ezemvelo KZN Wildlife
KwaZulu-Natal Gaming and Betting Board

Executive Authority of the controlling department: 
Mr Ravi Pillay 

Accounting O!cer of the controlling department: 
Mr Nhlakanipho Nkontwana
Accounting Authority - Refer to members'  
report note 20

Management of the Entity - Refer to 21 Controlling 
Department - Refer to note 2
Under the same control of EDTEA 
Under the same control of EDTEA 
Under the same control of EDTEA 
Under the same control of EDTEA 
Under the same control of EDTEA 
Under the same control of EDTEA 
Under the same control of EDTEA 
Under the same control of EDTEA 
Under the same control of EDTEA 
Under the same control of EDTEA 
Under the same control of EDTEA

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONT.

Related party transactions
Discretional Grants: EDTEA 128 691 128 356
Dube Trade Port 2 903 10 500
Projects Grant: EDTEA - 41 472
Ithala Development Finance Corporation 6 095 5 463
Key management remuneration 3 944 4 030
Directors Remuneration 2 578 2 189
KwaZulu-Natal Trade and Investment 372 1 000
COVID fund from EDTEA - 29 824

- -
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Related party transactions
Discretional Grants: EDTEA 128 691 128 356
Dube Trade Port 2 903 10 500
Projects Grant: EDTEA - 41 472
Ithala Development Finance Corporation 6 095 5 463
Key management remuneration 3 944 4 030
Directors Remuneration 2 578 2 189
KwaZulu-Natal Trade and Investment 372 1 000
COVID fund from EDTEA - 29 824

- -
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2021
R’000

2020
R’000

19. ACCUMULATED PROJECTS

Project Name FUNDER Restated
March 2020

Funding/Transfer 
of funds Expenditure March

2021

Tourism KZN Signage National Department of Tourism 117 - - 117

Metro awards events Economic Development ,Tourism 
and Environmental A"airs 171 - - 171

British Airways Dube Tradeport & Trade and 
Investment KZN 4 037 (3 275) 762

Nelson Mandela 
Capture Site

National Department of Tourism & 
Economic Development ,Tourism 
and Environmental A"airs

9 371 - - 9 371

CVB funding Economic Development ,Tourism 
and Environmental A"airs  8 500 (7 776) - 724

Umtelebhelo horse 
racing event

Economic Development ,Tourism 
and Environmental A"airs 9 - - 9

COVID-19 Economic Development ,Tourism 
and Environmental A"airs 29 824 (9 824) - 20 000

(52 029) (20 875) - 31 154

The organisation has received funding for di"erent projects during the financial period, each project has its own contractual 
terms and the organisation treats the funding as conditional grants. On receipt of the funds a liability is raised, only when 
the conditions of the contract have been met, then a project expense and project income are recognised. During the period 
under review ,the entity obtained authorisation from Provincial Treasury to repurpose R9 824 000 from the  COVID-19 
Relief Fund and R7 776 000 from Convention Bureau Bid Fund to fund operational costs relating to the
Summer Campaign to assist the recovery in the tourism sector.

The COVID-19 epidemic resulted in international travel restrictions that a"ected the contract with British Airways to 
promote the direct route between London and Durban. The contract expired during the period and the decision was not to 
renew it ,due to the uncertainty around COVID-19 travel restrictions .The project was funded by Dube Trade Port,  
KwaZulu-Natal Trade and Investment and KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority. After the expiry of the contract reimbursement 
of R2 903 000 to Dube Trade Port and R372 000 to KwaZulu-Natal Trade and Investment were done in proportion to 
their contribution.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONT.
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2021
R’000

2020
R’000

20. KEY!MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION $ EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT %

Basic Salary Post termination  
benefit (Prov fund) Short-term benefits Total

2021

Ms P Makwakwa 1 340 200 791 2 331

Mr L Sidaki 1 606 - 7 1 613

2 946 200 798 3 944

2020

Ms P Makwakwa 1 375 189 794 2 358

Mr L Sidaki 1 656 - 16 1 672

3 031 189 810 4 030

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONT.
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2021
R’000

2020
R’000

21. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS
Non-executive 
2021

Members' fees Other fees Total
Mr S L Madlala 703 - 703
Mr T Mzileni 378 8 386
Prof T Nzama 343 5 348
Mr P Ngcobo 346 9 355
Mr T Delomoney - - -
Mr D Ramuedzisi 58 - 58
Ms M Madlala 350 - 350
Prof T Nzimakwe 321 - 321
Mr M Ngcobo 57 - 57

2 556 22 2 578

2020

Members' fees Other fees Total
Mr S L Madlala 538 1 539
Mr T Mzileni 323 5 328
Ms P Lebenya 205 - 205
Dr U Roopnarain 146 - 146
Prof T Nzama 216 18 234
Mr P Ngcobo 266 4 270
Mr T Delomoney - - -
Mr M Jackson 26 - 26
Mr D Ramuedzisi 54 - 54
Mr N Malange 71 - 71
Ms M Madlala 11 - 11
Prof T Nzimakwe 261 1 262
Mr M Ngcobo 43 - 43

2 160 29 2 189

- Mr D. Ramuedzisi and Mr M. Ngcobo are independent members of the Audit Risk Committee.
- Mr T. Delomoney does not receive remuneration, he is an employee of the state.
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2021
R’000

2020
R’000

22. COMMITMENTS

Operating lease commitment

Already contracted for but not provided for

• Up to 1 year 6 741 6 485

• 2 to 5 years 6 399 13 141

13 140 19 626

Authorised operational expenditure

• Up to 1 year 2 832 2 485

• 2 to 5 years 15 900 28 813

18 732 31 298

Not yet contracted for and authorised by members

• Open orders 15 480 3 719

Total operational commitments

Already contracted for but not provided for 18 732 31 298

Not yet contracted for and authorised by members 15 480 3 719

34 212 35 017
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2021
R’000

2020
R’000

23. RISK MANAGEMENT

Liquidity risk

The entity’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity risk
through an ongoing review of future commitments.

At 31 March 2021 Less than 1 year Between 
1 and 2 years

Between 
2 and 5 years Over 5 years

Trade and other payables 43 467 - - -

At 31 March 2021 Less than 1 year Between 
1 and 2 years

Between 
2 and 5 years Over 5 years

Trade and other payables 77 727 - - -

Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. The entity
only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Trade receivables comprise a widespread of SMME's and other government departments. Management evaluates credit
risk relating to the debtors on an ongoing basis. Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

Financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents 61 754 68 080

Receivables from exchange 2 200 3 774

Receivables from non-exchange 36 397

63 990 72 251

Foreign exchange risk
The entity does not hedge foreign exchange fluctuations. The entity has certain foreign service providers whose invoices
are exposed to foreign currency translation risk. Currency exposure arising from foreign service providers is managed ,any
losses or gains are realised through the statement of financial performance. The entity uses the selling spot rate for its
foreign exchange transactions. Where contracting is done in a foreign currency, funds are ringfenced at the time of
contracting in the local currency and managed so as not to exceed the local currency ring fenced funds.



100

Part E
KWAZULU!NATAL TOURISM AUTHORITY TRADING AS TOURISM KWAZULU!NATAL
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONT.

2021
R’000

2020
R’000

24. FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

Opening balance as previously reported 592 592

25. IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

Opening balance 48 264 22 382

Opening balance as restated 48 264 22 382

Add: Irregular Expenditure - current 8 136 25 882

Less :Amount condoned relating to prior periods (30 186) -

Less :Amount condoned relating to the current period (1 395) -

Closing balance 24 819 48 264

The irregular expenditure of R1 998 852 relates to four ICT tenders that have expired and are on month to month and they
cannot be cancelled as the services are key to the operation of the organisation .Furthermore R 5 230 705 emanated from 
the entity procuring services and goods through its marketing agency which is a non-government institution as per Section 
217 of the Constitution and section 38 of the PFMA, the agency was supposed to be guided by TKZN policies in procuring 
goods and services on behalf of the entity . An amount R907 580 is a service acquired in 2019 that was irregular at the 
date of contracting.

26. NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

26.1 STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS EFFECTIVE AND ADOPTED IN THE CURRENT YEAR

In the current year, the entity has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are e"ective for the current
financial year and that are relevant to its operations:

E"ective date:
Years beginning  

on or after
Expected impact:

IGRAP 20: Accounting for Adjustments to Revenue 01 April 2021 The impact is not material.

GRAP 1 (amended): Presentation of Financial Statements 01 April 2021 The impact is not material.

GRAP 34: Separate Financial Statements 01 April 2021 The impact is not material.

IGRAP 1 (revised): Applying the Probability Test on Initial  
Recognition of Revenue 01 April 2021 The impact is not material.
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26.2 STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED, BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
The entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for
the entity’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2021 or later periods:
Standard/ Interpretation:

E"ective date: 
Years beginning on or after Expected impact:

GRAP 25 Employee Benefits 01 April 2021 Unlikely there will be a
material impact

GRAP 104 (amended): Financial Instruments 01 April 2021 Unlikely there will be a
material impact

27. CONTINGENCIES

Contingent Liability
In terms of the National Treasury instruction note 6 of 2017/2018, entities are required to request to treasury to retain 
cash surpluses(if any ), as at the reporting date the request had not yet been approved and therefore the cash surplus will 
remain a contingent liability till its approved.
Cash and cash equivalents 61 754

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 36

Receivables from exchange transactions 2 200

Less: Current Liabilities

Payables from exchange transactions (12 543)

Payables from non-exchange transactions (31 154)

Less -

Commitments (15 479)

4 814

28. CHANGE IN ESTIMATE

Property, plant and equipment
During the year, the entity conducted a review of the useful life of its assets, which resulted in changes in the expected
usage of certain equipment. Certain computer and o!ce equipment’s useful lives was revised by an additional 2 years.
The reassessment of the useful lives of assets with zero carrying amount but still in use, resulted in the reduction in the
depreciation by R81 866.44 .

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONT.
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29. GOING CONCERN AND EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD.

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilities, contingent obligations will occur in the ordinary course of business.

a recommendation from EDTEA was to merge KwaZulu-Natal Film Commission with TKZN and cabinet approved merger,
in 2020 cabinet again confirmed the merger. It is estimated that the merger with approved legislation will be completed in
the 2022/23 financial period.

The merger will not a"ect the going concern of entity within next 12 months after year-end, and it is expected to come into
e"ect in the 2022/23 financial period.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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